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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking stateteehat are made under the safe harbor provigibtise Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Theseteataents relate to our future plans, objectives eetgiions ang
intentions and involve inherent risks and uncetteén We use words such as “expect,” “anticipatgfoject,”

“believe,” “plan,” “intend,” “seek,” “should,” “esinate,” “future,” or variations of such words anther similar
expressions to identify forward-looking statementeu should not place undue reliance on these fatsa@oking

statements. Forward-looking statements containegirhéncluding future cash contractual obligatioliguidity, cash
flow, orders, results of operations, and trendragrother matters) or in other statements madeslay@imade based on
management’s expectations and beliefs concerningdevents impacting us and are subject to uringgs and
factors relating to our operations and businesgr@mwment, all of which are difficult to predict amdany of which are
beyond our control, that could cause our actualli®s$o differ materially from those matters exmed or implied by
forward-looking statements. We believe that thiofeing factors, among others (including those désctin Item 3.D.
“Risk Factors”), could affect our future performarand the liquidity and value of our securities andse our actual
results to differ materially from those expressedplied by forward-looking statements made byusn our behalf;
the cyclicality of the markets which we serve amel Yulnerability of those markets to economic dawms; the impac
of the recent global economic and financial critfie loss of, or a significant reduction or delaypurchases by ou
customers; competition in our markets; financiatmtiss of third parties; general economic, politibaisiness and
market risks associated with our global operatidlgtuations in foreign currency exchange andrige rates; ou
ability to control our costs while maintaining cmster relationships and core business resourcespribimg and
availability of raw materials; litigation and diges involving us, including the extent of produetllity, warranty,
pension, employment and other similar claims asdedgainst us; the impairment of our goodwill artteo
indefinite-lived intangible assets; labor costs disputes and the deterioration of our relationghwiur employees
additional liabilities related to taxes; our alyilib continue our technical innovation in our prodiines; our ability to
protect our intellectual property and know-how;imis that our products or processes infringe intélial property
rights of others; regulations governing the expbdur products; fluctuations in the price of otock; and other factor
described in this annual report. All forward-loogistatements attributable to us or persons aotingur behalf apply
only as of the date of this annual report and apeessly qualified in their entirety by the cauton statements included
in this annual report. We undertake no obligatmopdate or revise forward-looking statements whigty be made tT
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reflect events or circumstances that arise afeedtte made or to reflect the occurrence of unigatied events.
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Fiscal 2013 marks the first year in the Company&adny in which the majority of revenues were
generated domestically. We expect this trend tdigoe as our plans to transition the Company from
an export-driven home appliance business into aedticifocused electronic components and medical
instrument business further materialize. As witbstiransitions, especially those as drastic as, our
challenges have and will continue to arise. \itial that we continue to meet all such challengesd

on and remain focused on the long-term growth aiedess of the Company.

Net sales for fiscal 2013 were $81.1 million, aorégase of approximately 16.4% when compared to
net sales of $69.7 million in fiscal 2012. Netdder fiscal 2013 was $2.0 million, or $0.65 pearsh
compared to a net income of $1.4 million, or $0p&6 share, in fiscal 2012. Losses in fiscal 2013
were primarily attributable to continuing commonagies (which were previously absorbed by our
floor care business and now reflected in discomithaperations) no longer reflective of our current
operations and weak performance in the Compangtreinic manufacturing services (EMS) business.
Both issues are currently being addressed.

While incurring losses in fiscal 2013, the Compangash flow remained positive as our net cash
position increased approximately $1.9 million t®2$ million, despite investing approximately $7.8
million in capital equipment to improve our electiocomponent business.

Perhaps the most significant issue management fiacésical 2013 was determining the appropriate
use of the vacant portion of our facility in Donggnl China following the discontinuation of the
Company’s home appliance segment. While operdtexenses associated with the home appliance
segment were eliminated as a result of our exinftbis segment, many of the common charges
associated with the facility, such as real estated, maintenance and security expenses remain a
liability. Our facility continues to appreciate walue, which makes it imperative that the space be
used to generate income that, at a minimum, cowvegoing costs associated with owning and
maintaining the vacant space. @ We offered for 88000 square meters of production/warehouse
space and 6,500 square meters of dormitory spaoee sf which was leased during late fiscal 2012.
As of September 2013, we had leased 76,000 squetersrof warehouse space. Our aim is to lease
the remaining vacant space by the end of calenda4.2 At current rates, we would receive about
RMB9.5 million, or US$1.5 million, on an annualizédsis if the entire vacant space was rented.
During fiscal 2013, our rental income was US$178,00

During fiscal 2013, the Company purchased officacsgn Shenzhen, China for approximately US$4.2
million. This decision was made based on the pendixpiration of the current office lease and
heightened renewal rates. We believe that ownioggrty in China continues to be a productive use
of resources.

Net sales of our electronic components businesw grearly 20% in fiscal 2013 from an 11%
unit-volume increase. While the mix of businesgrioved, our plans to produce predominantly
higher megapixel CCMs never materialized, due piiigndo an unanticipated shift in customer
demand. In an effort to further improve this bess we completed the installation of three
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chip-on-board (COB) production lines and a Clasl#an room. Since COB production lines are
capable of producing higher-pixel camera modulesaher precision-related devices, we believe that
our CCM business will continue to grow through #uglition of new customers and the sale of higher
profit margin products.

Our electronic components business segment aléades a number of security and scanning devices
that we designed incorporating our CCM modules. fisical 2013, we generated about $3.8 million in
sales from these devices and are cautiously opiomisat the revenues from these products will
continue to contribute to segment growth.

The continued slowdown in the Chinese economy leaks d material adverse impact on our EMS
business, which relies exclusively on the Chinesmeaktic market. Labor shortage and inflation
related to wages and labor benefits also affectpdrating results. A trend towards moving
labor-intensive businesses to northern China ahdroAsian countries has emerged, with the largest
EMS operator in China relocating from Guangdongviee. Accordingly, we are considering
strategic alternatives, including the potentiaklag of our SMT equipment and the facility that bes
and operates such equipment in an effort to gemedditional income and to improve our financial
performance.

Our disposable medical instrument business is pssgng slowly since obtaining the various required
approvals and licenses in China remains a workogness. Our existing products are currently being
used in over 100 hospitals in China. As this bessncontinues to grow, it is essential that we
accelerate our training program. Accordingly, we &urrently engaging more trainers while
concurrently expanding our research and developratatts. We have three new products in the
certification process and expect to obtain approeal clinical trial sometime in fiscal 2015.
Revenues from this business thus far are modesstydbelieve that the disposable medical instrument
business presents significant opportunity for growt

The dynamic environment in China requires that wantain flexibility to move in and out of
businesses as circumstances change while at theetsamprotecting our cash and real estate assets t
the fullest. We appreciate your continued suppod hope that your patience will soon be rewarded.
Again, | wish to thank my fellow employees and siaiders for their ongoing support.

JOHN C.K. SHAM
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 16, 2013

12/F., Kin Teck Industrial Building
26 Wong Chuk Hang Road
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

Tel.: (852) 2814-0601

Fax: (852) 2873-0591
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Board of Directors and shareholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Global-Tech Advanced Innovationsdnd. its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Camy’) as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the rélatmsolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive inccmagges in shareholders’ equity and cash flowthyears ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012. These consolidated fimhstatements are the responsibility of the Comjsamanagement.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on aiit.au

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightdq&nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrpn the audit to obtain reasonable assurancet aftfether the
consolidated financial statements are free of raterisstatement. The Company is not required t@haor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdraxer financial reporting. Our audit included citesation of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis forigieg auditing procedures that are appropriatiéncircumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our aaliib included examining, on a test basis, evidsopporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemast®essing the accounting principles used andisimt estimates made
by management and evaluating the overall finarst&tement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all matenéapects, the financial
positions of the Company as of March 31, 2013 &fP2and the consolidated results of its operatiomscash flows for
each of the years then ended, in conformity wittoaating principles generally accepted in the UWhiBates of America.

/sl Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

July 23, 2013



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of operations and comprehensive income, esang
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the yeadedrMarch 31, 2011 of Global-Tech Advanced Innaratilnc. (the
“Company”). These financial statements are theaesibility of the Company’s management. Our resjimlity is to
express an opinion on these financial statemerstsdoan our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightld&nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrpn the audit to obtain reasonable assurancet affeether the
financial statements are free of material misstateimAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemast®ssing the accounting principles used andisinmt estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overahfiial statement presentation. We believe thatodit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagrferred to above present fairly, in all mategsapects, the results of
the operations and cash flows of the Company ferytrar ended March 31, 2011, in conformity withcagting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO Limited

BDO Limited
Hong Kong, August 31, 2011 except for Note 18,
which is as of July 23, 2012



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2013 and 2012

Notes 2013 2012
uss$ us$
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ..........cuviiiiiieeeieee e ee s e e e eeeraeeeeaens 4 32,385,376 39,792,733
Restricted cash 5 14,592,289 4,546,062
Available-for-sale INVESIMENTS ........ooiiiiieee e 6 17,153 2,006,066
Accounts and bills receivable..............oovvviiiii 7 19,713,608 30,273,062
1YY (o ) = PR 8 5,392,332 5,374,192
Prepaid XPENSES ..uvuiiiiiiiii i et ie e ee e s et e s e e e e e e e aaaaeta et aereae e r e 181,224 149,558
Deposits and Other @SSELS.....uuu it cereeeeers e 5,044,456 769,206
Amount due from a related Party............ooceeeemriiiiiiiir e 9 18,841 11,798
TOtAl CUIMTENT ASSELS ....vvviiiiiiieeees e s s mmmeeemee e e eeteeesesas b ereeeeeaeeeeessaassnraeareeaeeesesenansnnnnes 77,345,279 82,922,677
Interests in jointly-controlled eNntitiesS......cccueuvveiiiiiie e 12 — —
Property, plant and equipmMeENt, NEL ... 1C 26,528,681 21,933,787
Land USE FMQNLS, NMEL......uiieiiiieie e ccemees e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaeaeeeeas 11 3,026,537 3,083,128
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant apaEment..............oooooiiiiiiiieiene e e 280,146 66,617
Available-for-sale INVESIMENLS .......o.uuii e e 6 1,045,200 1,033,800
] = U= TS T T P TSP P PP PP PPPRPTOPPRPPN 108,225,843 109,040,009
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short term BanK [0ANS.........cooiiiii e ee e eaaaas 14 4,826,241 4,000,000
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ....oeiiie e e a e 7,134,526 8,163,510
(I 1S] (o] 4 a1 a0 [=T o Yo 1] | S RESRSRR 1,331,100 860,779
Accrued salaries, allowances and other employeefti®n..............cccccviiiiiiiienninnnnn. 4,367,642 3,102,335
Other accrued labilitieS...........ooceviii e e e e e 13,22 9,643,638 6,637,851
INCOME taX PAYADIE. .. .eeiiiiie e 4,659,313 6,157,885
Total CUrrent aDIlItIES .......uuieeieieie s cmmme e e e s e e e ee e e s e s e s ennennes 31,962,460 28,922,360
Deferred tax Habilities............oi e e 17 5,180 27,017
Total IADIItIES ...t 31,967,640 28,949,377
Commitments and CONINGENCIES ......ceeiii i vceeeeeee e et er e e e e e e e s e eeenberreeae e e s e eennnes 20,21
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value US$0.04 per share; 12,60G;bares authorized,;
3,230,814 and 3,229,314 shares issued as of M&rc®033 and 2012 ................. 15 129,233 129,173
Preferred stock, par value US$0.04 per share; BBGBares authorized; no shares
(151U 1= PSP — —
Additional paid-in capital 85,053,402 84,786,226
Statutory reserves .......cccceeeeeveiieeiiem 1,238,361 —
Accumulated defiCit .......cooi i (15,932,941) (9,690,526
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME..... .o eeeeevereririeieeeees s eenieeeneeeees 10,709,740 9,697,445
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 189,587 shares suath 31, 2013 and 2012 ............ (4,663,321) (4,663,321
Total Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. shalééis’ equity ...........cocevvvveeenes 76,534,474 80,258,997
[No) g BToto] gl o] [T To T 0] (=] £ S1] £ SRS (276,271) (168,365
Total shareholders’ EQUILY .......cooiiei it 76,258,203 80,090,632
Total liabilities and shareholders’ QUILY ... .o eererrriiiiieieee e er e e e e e 108,225,843 109,040,009

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftmsolidated financial statements.




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEBINE INCOME
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, 2012 AND11

Net SaleS.......oooveeeeriiiiiie e
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other operating income, net

Operating profit (loss)

Interest income, net
Other income (expenses), net

Income (Loss) from continuing operations beforeome taxes................

Income tax (expense) benefit

Income (Loss) from continuing operations
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations, nedarf

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Release of unrealized loss on available-for-salestments, net of

income tax of nil, upon disposal

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investmenés,of income

tax of nil

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investmemts,of income

tax of Nil ...eeeeeieiii
Total comprehensive income (loss)

Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributableoto-econtrolling

interests

Net income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributablehtarsholders of

Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc

Income (Loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controllimgeirests

Income (Loss) from continuing operations attriblgatio shareholders of

Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

Net income (loss) attributable to shareholderslob@l-Tech Advanced

Innovations Inc

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) from continuipgrations per share of

common stock

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share of comstock

Basic and diluted weighted average number of stafresmmon stock...

Notes 2013 2012 2011
Us$ US$ Uss
81,083,384 69,652,705 57,468,866
(70,817,320) (59,008,973 (50,403,138)
10,266,064 10,643,732 7,065,728
(16,254,968) (10,612,458 (11,317,767)
— 28,589 1,137,580
(5,988,904) 59,863  (3,114,459)
1,504,166 95,477 536,187
16 845,806 1,116,279 370,274
(3,638,932) 1,271,619 (2,207,998)
17 841,900 (1,228,625 (204,122)
(2,797,032) 42,994  (2,412,120)
18 725,773 1,374,342 (1,775,879)
(2,071,259) 1,417,336  (4,187,999)
989,852 2,277,759 2,304,636
— — 1,877
22,495 24,600 11,092
— (643 —
(1,058,912) 3,719,052  (1,870,394)
107,958 (6,659 175,028
(52) 454 (458)
(951,006) 3,712,847  (1,695,824)
(2,797,032) 42,994  (2,412,120)
107,958 (6,659 175,028
(2,689,074) 36,335  (2,237,092)
725,773 1,374,342 (1,775,879)
(1,963,301) 1,410,677 (4,012,971)
(0.88) 0.01 (0.74)
19 (0.65) 0.46 (1.32)
Number Number Number
19 3,040,310 3,039,727 3,039,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftmsolidated financial statements.



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDEREQUITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, 2012 ANDD11

Number of shares

Amounts

Common
stock

Treasury
stock

Common

stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Statutory
reserves

Accumulated
deficit

Accumulated other
Treasury comprehensive
stock income (loss)

Total
Global-Tech Non-
shareholders’ controlling
equity interests

Total
equity

Balance as of

March 31, 201Q.........
Net loss for the year..
Other comprehensive
income:

e unrealized gain o
available-for-sale
investments, net of
income tax of nil........
¢ release of
unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
investments, net of
income tax of nil, upo
disposal........c.ccooenuene.
« foreign currency
translation adjustments

3,228,564

(189,587)

uss

129,143

uss

84,280,027

uss

Uss$

(7,088,232)
(4,012,971)

Uss$ uss

(4,663,321) 5,078,128

— 11,092

— 1,877

— 2,304,178

uss Uss$

77,735,745 —
(4,012,971) (175,028)

11,092 —

1,877 —

2,304,178 458

uss

77,735,745
(4,187,999)

11,092

1,877

2,304,636

Total net
comprehensive incorm

Stock compensation
EXPENSES......ceeveeerenans
Shares issued to an
employee..........c........

750

30

470,109

1,969

(4,012,971)

— 2,317,147

(1,695,824) (174,570)
470,109 —

1,999 —

(1,870,394)
470,109

1,999

Balance as of
March 31, 2011.........
Net income for the

e unrealized gain o
available-for-sale
investments, net of
income tax of nil........

¢ unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
investments, net of
income tax of nil........

« foreign currency
translation adjustments

3,229,314

(189,587)

129,173

84,752,105

(11,101,203)

1,410,677

(4,663,321)

7,395,275

— 24,600

— (643)

— 2,278,213

76,512,029 (174,570)

1,410,677 6,659

24,600 —

(643) —

2,278,213 (454)

76,337,459

1,417,336

24,600

(643)

2,277,759

Total net
comprehensive incon

1,410,677
8

— 2,302,170

3,712,847 6,205

3,719,052



Stock compensation

EXPENSES...ovnrreenens

Balance as of
March 31, 2012

Number of shares Amounts
Total
Additional Accumulated other Global-Tech Non-

Common Treasury Common paid-in Statutory Accumulated Treasury comprehensive shareholders’ controlling Total

stock stock stock capital reserves deficit stock income (loss) equity interests equity

Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ US$ US$ Uss$ Uss$ US$ uUss$
— — — 34,121 — — — — 34,121 — 34,121
3,229,314 (189,587) 129,173 84,786,226 — (9,690,526) (4,663,321) 9,697,445 80,258,997 (168,365) 80,090,632



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDEREQUITY (continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, 2012 ANDD11

Number of shares Amounts
Total Non-
Additional Accumulated other Global-Tech controllin
Common Treasury Common paid-in Statutory Accumulated Treasury comprehensive shareholders’ g Total
stock stock stock capital reserves deficit stock income (loss) equity interests equity
US$ US$ Uss$ Uss$ US$ Uss$ US$ Uss$ uss
Balance as of March 31,

2012 e 3,229,314 (189,587) 129,173 84,786,226 — (9,690,526) (4,663,321) 9,697,445 80,258,997 (168,365) 80,090,632
Net loss for the year........ — — — — — (1,963,301) — — (1,963,301) (107,958) (2,071,259)
Other comprehensive

income:

e unrealized gain on

available-for-sale

investments, net of

income tax of nil......... — — — — — — — 22,495 22,495 — 22,495
»  foreign currency

translation adjustments — — — — — — — 989,800 989,800 52 989,852
Total net comprehensive

income (losSs)............. — — — — — (1,963,301) — 1,012,295 (951,006) (107,906) (1,058,912)
Stock compensation

EXPENSES......cvvereereenes — — — 258,128 — — — — 258,128 — 258,128
Shares issued to an

employee.........ccceeene, 1,500 — 60 9,048 — — — — 9,108 — 9,108
Transfer to statutory

[E€SEIVES...eveeeeeveeenn — — — — 1,238,361 (1,238,361) — — — — —
Cash dividend (note)....... — — — — — (3,040,753) — — (3,040,753) — (3,040,753)
Balance as of March 31,

2013, 3,230,814 (189,587) 129,233 85,053,402 1,238,361 (15,932,941) (4,663,321) 10,709,740 76,534,474 (276,271) 76,258,203

Note: On August 22, 2012, the Board of Directorslaied a special cash dividend of US$1 per eachmmmstock, except for treasury stock owned by tm@any itself. The special cash dividend was paid o

September 5, 2012.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftihheolidated financial statements.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, 2012 ANID11

Cash flows from operating activities

NEL INCOME (J0SS). i iiiiiiii i erreee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeaenes

Plus: (Income) Loss from discontinued operatioms,afi taxes......................

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mesthcprovided by (used in)

operating activities:

AMOTTIZATION ...ttt e ettt bbb e e e e e e e eas
(1T o] =T o = L4 ISR SPPRP PR
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and popgnt......................
Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNLS ..............mmrveeeeeeeiiiieece e
Stock compensation EXPENSE ......uiiieeiiiieeeeeeeeiiie e e e e e e e e e aanas
Shares issued to an eMPIOYEE ..........uvivieeeecccceee e e
Interest received from available-for-sale investtaen........................
DEfITEA TAX .ttt ieee e e i sttt et ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e aanes
Foreign exchange

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and bills receivable ...
Prepaid EXPENSES........ccciiiieieiie et een e
Deposits and other aSSEtS ......ccoovv i i iieeeeeeiis e
Legal claims receivable...............uuviiiiiiiiii e
Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity .......coooveeviririmmeeenenn.
INVENTOTIES ..eeeiiiieee ettt ettt et e e e e e e be e eeeaaa
ACCOUNES PAYADIE.......ccoiiiieiieiieeiii e e
Discounted DillS .........coooiiiiiiiiii e
Accrued salaries, allowances and other employeeftien...................
Other accrued liabilities ..........cooo i iiccemem e
Accrual for 0SS CONtINGENCIES ........ccvvveviviiiiiiie e e
Amount due from a related party .........cccveeececceeeeeeereeee e,
Income tax payable ...........ooooviiiiiiiiii e

Cash provided by (used in) operating activitie®rtiniuing operations.........
Cash provided by (used in) operating activitiessea@htinued operations.....

Net cash provided by (used in) OPerations ... .ceeeeeeiccvcce e e

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egaig...............ccccvvvvveeeeen.
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant apdmment...............c.c........

Purchases of property, plant and equipment.............ccccvvvieeriiiieeneeeeeeeen,

Decrease (Increase) in time depOSItS .......cueeeeeerriiiiiiiiiiiien e ee e
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale inWestts............cccceeveeeeriiiieens
Purchases of available-for-sale investments.............ccvvvivimeeeieniiieeeene

Cash provided by (used in) investing activitiesoatuing operations.........
Cash provided by (used in) investing activitiessedntinued operations.....

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities...........cccooevveviveecnnnnnnn,

11

2013 2012 2011
USs$ uUss Uss
(2,071,259) 1,417,336 (4,187,999)
(725,773)  (1,374,342) 1,775,879
100,243 98,349 93,780
3,342,484 1,940,518 1,638,360
43,311 86,015 3,662
— — 768
258,128 34,121 470,109
9,108 — 1,999
_ (13) —
(21,861) (604) 93,907
343,080 67,828 (390,511)
10,832,906  (6,656,556) (3,974,939)
(141,709) 135,753 (74,341)
(4,403,866) (139,251) 22,616
— 15,730 5,077,737
— 13,694 7,937
58,655 (226,182) (1,040,759)
(538,503) 1,573,958 3,003,617
— — (3,354,398)
2,159,620 184,139 927,917
7,636,375 (542,056) 491,005
— (19) (912,192)
(7,043) — —
(1,495,465) 663,564 (458,708)
15,378,431  (2,708,018) (784,554)
(5,432,318) 16,078,896 (9,237,674)
9,946,113 13,370,878  (10,022,228)
160 — 1,458
(209,801) (3,365) —
(7,613,631) (543,188) (4,446,340)
— 1,567,786 (1,494,953)
2,000,000 9,000,000 15,986,532
— (8,999,987) (3,000,000)
(5,823,272) 1,021,246 7,046,697
506,669 (240,763) (217,028)
(5,316,603) 780,483 6,829,669




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, 2012 ANID11

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts (Deposits) of restricted Cash ......ccceeeevivviiiiiiiiie e,

Proceeds from short-term bank loans
Settlements of short-term bank loans

Cash dividend paid

Cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesontinuing operations.

Cash used in financing activities — discontinuedrapons...........................

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitieS............cccceeeeeivicceevvvnviennnnnn

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash.......vvvviiiiiceeiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn,

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent..................coocummeeeereennn.

Cash and cash equ
Cash and cash equ

ivalents at beginning of fisaal .ye..........cccccevvveii i e e
ivalents at end Of fiSCal YAl cuuenrvvvveerieieeeiieeeiiiiiiiiee e,

Supplemental disclosure information:
Cash paid fOor INEIESE ..........oiiiiii e eeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Cash paid for taxes
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2013 2012 2011
USs$ Uss USs$
(9,850,513 15,420,274  (14,503,181)
757,941 — 21,479,662
— (8,930,492  (9,216,587)
(3,040,753 — —
(12,133,325 6,489,782  (2,240,106)
(12,133,325 6,489,782  (2,240,106)
96,458 (53,594 (170,747)
(7,407,357 20,587,549  (5,603,412)
39,792,733 19,205,184 24,808,596
32,385,376 39,792,733 19,205,184
109,749 106,599 270,823
700,334 569,645 623,151




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (“Global-T8dfiormerly known as Global-Tech Appliances Inis.)
primarily an investment holding company, which wasorporated in the British Virgin Islands on May1®91.
Global-Tech and its subsidiaries (hereinafter ctiely referred to as the “Company”) is primardymanufacturer of
consumer electrical products, including, but netitéd to electronic and optical components, aralse involved in
the assembly of cellular phones. The Company’s if@@twring operation is located in Dongguan, thephes
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company’s produare primarily sold to customers located in tRECP

Effective December 10, 2008, Global-Tech’s commoclswas no longer traded on the New York Stockiaxge
and commenced trading on the Nasdaq Capital M&fKeisdaq”) under the symbol “GAI”. Global-Tech alsbbanged
its name to “Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Ineffective as of the close of business on Decerh®g2008.

To satisfy the minimum bid price requirement of tg, Global-Tech’s Board of Directors authorizecharendment
to Global-Tech’s Memorandum of Association to effe@-for-1 reverse stock split of the issued antstanding
shares of common stock of Global-Tech, effectivefabe close of business on December 10, 2008'Efiective
Date”). Global-Tech also proportionally reduced #uthorized number of its common and preferredksbgcfour to
12,500,000 and 250,000, respectively. These fimhsthtements present common stock, preferred stodlshare
option information to reflect the above-mentionedarse stock split on a retroactive basis.

2.  SUBSIDIARIES
Details of Global-Tech’s subsidiaries as of Mardh 2013 were as follows:
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration the Company Principal activities
Global Appliances Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Global Display Holdings Limited . British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Kwong Lee Shun Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 100 Leasing of a property and the
rendering of administration
and management services
GT Investments (BVI) Limited....................... British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Consortium Investment (BVI) Limited........... British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Global Optics Limited..........ccccccvvereeriieeencnnes Hong Kong 100 Trading of raw materials and
electronic and optical
Components
Dongguan Wing Shing Electrical Products PRC 100 Provision of cellular phone
Factory Company Limited (“DWS?)........... assembly services
Dongguan Lite Array Company Limited PRC 100 Developing, manufacturing and
(“DGLAD”) uutiteieeeeeeee e eeeeviees e marketing of electronic and optical
components and provision of
cellular phone assembly
services
Dongguan Microview Medical Technology = PRC 100 Manufacturing of
Company Limited..........c.cooeeevvvvvvvimmmennnns medical instruments
Joke Media Limited ...........ccccceeviiiiiiiciceninns PRC 100 Media services
Global Household Products Limited............. Hong Kong 100 Trading of
household appliance products
Pentalpha Medical Limited....................com..._HONG Kong 100 Inactive
Pentalpha Hong Kong Limited (“Pentalpha’) Hong Kong 100 Inactive
Global-Tech USA, INC. .....oooveiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, State of Delaware, 100 Provision of consultation

13



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration the Company Principal activities
U.S.A. services
Global Lite Array (BVI) Limited..................... British Virgin Islands 76.75 Investment holding
Lite Array, INC....oveeeeeiieiiiciiiiieeeeeee e State of Delaware, 76.75
U.S.A.

Inactive

MasterWerke Limited and Global Digital Imaging Liexd were dissolved on May 2 and May 8, 2012, respeyg.

Global Rich Innovation Limited and Global Auto Lited were dissolved on February 26 and Februar@83,
respectively.

Wing Shing Overseas Limited was dissolved on May228.3.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(®

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with generally accepted aticau
principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP").

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include itheenttial statements of Global-Tech and its subsEiaThe
fiscal year end date of Lite Array Holdings Limitétlite Array Holdings”), a jointly-controlled ety of the
Company, is December 31. There have been no signiftransactions in Lite Array Holdings and its
subsidiaries which would materially affect the Cany's financial position and results of operatidusing
each of the periods from Lite Array Holdings’ fisgaar end date to March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

All significant intercompany balances and transaxtibetween group companies are eliminated on
consolidation.

Discontinued operations

Unless otherwise indicated, information presenteithé notes to the consolidated financial statesetates
only to Global-Tech’s continuing operations. Infation related to discontinued operations is inctlitienote
18 and in some instances, where appropriate, isdad as separate disclosure within the individoainotes.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financidgéstants in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires magagnt
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. Hstisgates, judgments and assumptions affect thoeiais
that are reported in these consolidated finant@aéments and accompanying disclosures. The ngrsfisant
accounting estimates with regard to these congelidiinancial statements that require the mostifsogmt and
subjective judgments include, but are not limitedvaluation of investments and determination of
other-than-temporary impairments, useful lives migerty, plant and equipment, recoverability ofgdived
assets, determination of impairment losses, assggsshmarket value of inventories and provision fo
inventory obsolescence, allowance for doubtful aots, provision for employee benefits, provision fo
warranty, recognition and measurement of curredtdeferred income taxes (including income tax bienef
(expense)), valuation allowance for deferred tapetss assumptions used for the valuation of optiomairchase
Global-Tech’s common stock, provision for loss dogéncies, and measurement of fair values of firinc
instruments. Changes in facts and circumstancesresait in revised estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hmahbank deposits, which are unrestricted to withwdaad use,
and other investments that are readily convertitile cash with original maturities of three monthidess.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash consists of bank deposits, whichandy be used to settle pre-arranged general bgnki
facilities.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

@

@

Investments

Debt and equity investments designated as avaifablgale investments are stated at fair value edlized
gains or losses, net of tax, on available-for-galestments are included in accumulated other cehgarsive
income (loss), a separate component of sharehokelgugy. Realized gains and losses and any decliméair
value judged to be other-than-temporary on avaldibit-sale investments are included in the conatdid
statement of operations and comprehensive incomi@s®r losses on sale of investments and amounts
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensigeme (loss) to earnings are computed based @sptwfic
identification method. Interest or dividend incooresecurities classified as available-for-sale $tweents is
included in interest income or dividend income pesgively.

Non-derivative securities with fixed or determiraplayments and fixed maturities are classified as
held-to-maturity investments if the Company hashhbe positive intention and ability to hold thedncial
assets to maturity. Investments intended to be toehdaturity are measured at amortized cost. |stene
securities classified as held-to-maturity investtaésincluded in interest income.

Prior to April 1, 2009, declines in the fair valakheld-to-maturity and available-for-sale secesdtbelow their
amortized cost, that were deemed to be other-thiaparary, were all reported in investment gainssgs), net.
Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted newoanting guidance for impairment of debt securitfest
are deemed to be other-than-temporary. Factorsdemesl in evaluating potential impairment includet are
not limited to, the current fair value as compati@dost or amortized cost of the security, as gmjate, the
length of time the investment has been below coahwrtized cost and by how much, our intent tbasel
security and whether it is more-likely-than-not wid be required

to sell the security before the recovery of our gimed cost basis, and specific credit issuesedlat the issuer
and current economic conditions. Under the new impent model, the credit component of an
other-than-temporary impairment of a debt secusitgported in investment gains (losses), net hadchoncredit
component is reported in other comprehensive inc@oss). In addition, other-than-temporary declimes
beneficial interests purchased or retained in ari&ation transaction which are classified asilatde-for-sale
debt securities are recognized if there has beelagrse change in the cash flows as of the etiteateporting
period. Interest and dividends, as well as amditimaf premiums and accretion of discounts, apored in
interest and dividend income. Amortization of prems and accretion of discounts on debt securities a
recognized over the remaining maturity under therest method.

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture thigt subject to joint control, resulting in nonetbé participating
parties having unilateral control over the econoaditivity of the jointly-controlled entity. The Cgrany’s
investment in a jointly-controlled entity for whidf) not being the unilateral controlling ownerthé entity, but
has the ability to exercise joint control, is aaotma for using the equity method. Under the equigthod, the
Company’s proportionate share of the jointly-colida entities’ net income or loss and amortizatdmny
identifiable intangibles arising from the investrh@nincluded in “Share of income (losses) of jhirtontrolled
entities”. The Company ceases to apply the equéthod when its share of the jointly-controlled tes’ losses
exceeds the carrying value of its investment.

Investments

All other investments for which the Company doeshave the ability to exercise joint control orrgfgcant
influence (generally, when the Company has an invest of less than 20% ownership and no representan
the investee’s board of directors) and for whiagréhis not a readily determinable fair value, a@anted for
using the cost method. Dividends and other distidios of earnings from such investees, if any,iackided in
income when declared. The Company periodicallywatals the carrying value of its investments acaxifdar
under the cost method for impairment with any lostuded in the consolidated statement of operatamd
comprehensive income in the period when it is ireadir
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(h)  Accounts and bills receivable

Accounts and bills receivable are presented nahafllowance for doubtful accounts, which is aineste of
amounts that may not be collectible. The Compamsdwt charge interest on accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated basetistorical experience, receivable aging, curesanomic
trends and specific identification of certain reediles that are at the risk of not being paid. Thenpany
reviews the aged analysis of accounts and billsivable on a regular basis. Whenever it is cleatr ttie
amounts are deemed to be uncollectible, receivatewritten off against the allowance for doubtfatounts.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etavklue. Cost, calculated on the weighted aveages,
comprises direct materials and, where applicaltectlabor and an appropriate proportion of ovadse

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than constmudh progress, are stated at cost less accundulate
depreciation and any accumulated impairment lo§des cost of an item of property, plant and equipme
comprises its purchase price and any directlytattable costs of bringing the asset to its workiagdition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incuraéiér an item of property, plant and equipmentteen put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenaneyrimally charged to the consolidated statemenpefations
and comprehensive income in the period in whidéhiihcurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted incaease in the future economic benefits expectdu
obtained from the use of an item of property, pkamd equipment, and where the cost of the itenbean
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalizedraadditional cost of that asset. Depreciatiaraisulated on
the straight-line basis at annual rates over tBetasestimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purposeaarfollows:

Annual rate

Leasehold improvements...........ccccoevvevveevevevneienniinn, Over the shorter of the lease terms or the estinageful life
BUIIAINGS. .. e ee e 4.5%

PLANE ... e 4.5%

MACHINEIY ..t 10%

MOUIS ... 20% - 33%

Transportation equipMeNt..............oovvvvimmmmmeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnns 15% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccoeeeeeeiiivemn e, 15%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derexibed upon disposal or when no future economic fitsrere
expected to arise from the continued use of thetashe gain or loss arising on derecognition oitem of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as tfierdnce between the net disposal proceeds anchthgng
amount of the item, is included in the consolidatdement of operations and comprehensive incartieei
period the item is derecognized. Machinery andpgent used in the home appliance business has been
derecognized pending sale.

(k)  Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, @adtequipment under construction or installatiod is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment lossesisamat depreciated. Cost comprises the direcsaufst
construction, installation and other costs in mgkime asset ready for its intended use. Construatiprogress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of prop plant and equipment when completed and réads
intended use.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0]

(m)

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are included in impairment ew#na when events and circumstances exist thatatelithe
carrying value of these assets may not be recolerabaccordance with Financial Accounting StaddaBoard
(“FASB”") ASC 360 “Property, Plant and Equipmentét@ompany assesses the recoverability of the carryi
value of long-lived assets by first grouping itadelived assets with other assets and liabilitiethe lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows are largely in@eplent of the cash flows of other assets and ili@sil(the
asset group) and, secondly, estimating the undigedufuture cash flows that are directly associatitd and
expected to arise from the use of and eventuabdigpn of such asset group. The Company estintages
undiscounted cash flows over the remaining usétibff the primary asset within the asset grouphéf carrying
value of the asset group exceeds the estimatedamdited cash flows, the Company records an imgairm
charge to the extent the carrying value of the {livef asset exceeds its fair value. The Compangrdenes
fair value through quoted market prices in activarkets or, if quotations of market prices are uiiaite,
through the performance of internal analysis usimiscounted cash flow methodology or obtains esler
appraisals from independent valuation firms. Theiscounted and discounted cash flow analyses aedban a
number of estimates and assumptions, includingxipected period over which the asset will be @diz
projected future operating results of the assatgrdiscount rate and long-term growth rate. Loned assets,
excluding buildings, associated with the home appié business are considered to be impaired aoddingly
have been written down to fair value less the estiéoh cost of disposal. Since the Company has leased
significant portion of the buildings previously agied by the home appliance business, the Compasyable
to perform an impairment analysis based on antiegpfuture rental income, and as a result detemhihat they
were not impaired.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordancehétBecurities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenugecognition”, which requires that four basic aigenust
be met before revenue can be recognized: (1) thgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement exists;

(2) delivery has occurred or services have beeteredl; (3) the fee is fixed or determinable; and

(4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Net sagmesent the gross invoiced amount, net of distspand are
recognized when goods are shipped and title haseda¥o the extent products are required to mestbmer
specifications, such products are subject to teah@ind quality tests that are designed to ensumgpkiance
prior to shipment.

Under the Company’s standard terms and conditiwh&h are mainly Free On Board shipping pointetiahd
risk of loss are transferred to the customer atithe the product is delivered to the custome@sgint
forwarder.

Revenue related to camera modules (“*CCMs”) shipmntertain telecommunication customers in the BFRC
recognized upon notarized acceptance of the prdguitie customer.

Revenue related to the provision of assembly sesvig recognized upon the completion of such sesvand
delivery of the related product using the sameigetof SAB No. 104 stated above.

Deposits or advance payments from customers pridelivery and passage of title of merchandiseecerded
as customer deposits.

Revenue related to the provision of tooling incaseecognized upon the completion of such sendces
delivery of the related product using the sameatof SAB No. 104 stated above.

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PR(ue-added tax is levied on the invoiced valiigates of
goods and is payable by the purchaser. Reveneeadgnized net of all value-added tax imposed by
governmental authorities and collected from custsngzencurrent with revenue-producing transactions.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(n)

(0)

(P)

(@)

Advertising costs

Advertising costs represent costs relating to ptinal activities intended to stimulate, directlyindirectly, a
customer’s purchase of goods, and are chargecteatfisolidated statement of operations and compsére
income as incurred and are included in “Sellingyegal and administrative expenses” (“SG&A”). Adveirtg
expenses were US$231,171, US$81,098 and US$99drBCcbntinuing operations for the fiscal years ehde
March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Wieenaf US$1,754 and US$2,279 were from discontihue
operations for the fiscal years ended March 3132@012 and 2011, respectively.

Design and development costs

Design and development costs primarily relate éodbst of samples and prototypes and salariesrafrayineers.
The Company expenses all design and developmeistwben incurred. Included in the SG&A expenses lin
item in the consolidated statement of operatiomsamprehensive income were design and developoostg

of US$820,649, US$620,768 and US$870,616 from waintg operations (from discontinued operations 2013
nil, 2012: US$106,190 and 2011: US$216,618) forfideal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Shipping and handling costs

In accordance with FASB ASC 605 “Revenue Recogmitishipping and handling fees billed to custorames
included in net sales in the consolidated statemieoperations and comprehensive income. Any shippnd
handling costs incurred by the Company associatddtihe sale of products are included in SG&A oa filice
of the consolidated statement of operations andpcenensive income. During the fiscal years endettMal,
2013, 2012 and 2011, shipping and handling costsgeldl to SG&A were US$327,795, US$217,368 and
US$146,608 from continuing operations (from disgmrtd operations 2013: nil, 2012: US$722,371 arfdl 20
US$730,807), respectively.

Any inbound freight charges, receiving, inspectiwarehousing and internal transfer costs incurgethé
Company are expensed as cost of goods sold. Dtivinfjscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 201
inbound freight costs charged to cost of goods @k US$21,434, US$20,922 and US$32,566 from
continuing operations (from discontinued operati2@%3: nil, 2012: US$70,279 and 2011: US$9,781),
respectively. Other related costs are includedamufacturing overheads.

Foreign currencies

All transactions in currencies other than functionarencies during the year are translated aefobange rates
prevailing on the respective transaction dates. dfkmy assets and liabilities existing at the batasteeet date
denominated in currencies other than functionalenaies are remeasured at the exchange ratesgxastithat
date. Exchange differences are recorded in theolidaged statement of operations and comprehemsdzene.

The functional currency of Global-Tech is the UDBllar (“US$"). The financial statements of all sitiiaries
are translated in accordance with FASB ASC 830 éigpr Currency Matters”. All assets and liabilitea®s
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at #henlce sheet date and all income and expense &ems
translated at the average rates of exchange osegrethr. All exchange differences arising from tla@slation of
subsidiaries’ financial statements are recordeal @smponent of comprehensive income or loss.

19



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Q)

(s)

®)

(u)

Income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided using the aswktiability method in accordance FASB ASC 74ficome
taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes aregeized for all significant temporary differences a
enacted rates and classified as current or nomigcubased upon the classification of the relatsdtas liability
in the consolidated statements. A valuation allowvesis provided to reduce the amount of deferrechsets if it
is considered more likely than not that some portf or all, the deferred tax asset will not balized.

FASB ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertyain income taxes recognized in an enterpriseiarftial
statements, and prescribes a recognition threstrmldneasurement attribute for the financial stateme
recognition and measurement of a tax position takezxpected to be taken in a tax return. It alewides
accounting guidance on de-recognition, classificatinterest and penalties, accounting in interariqals,
disclosure and transition. Interest and penalties ftax assessments, if any, are included in ind@axes in the
consolidated statement of operations and compreleimome.

The Company records its possible interest and pesalue to any potential underpayment of incormedaif
and when required, in interest expense and othmereses, respectively.

The Company did not provide for deferred incomesaand foreign withholding taxes on the undistedut
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. The Company ii¢eio permanently reinvest foreign subsidiarieshiegys.

Stock compensation expense

The Company adopted FASB ASC 718 “CompensationkSTmmpensation”, and related interpretations in
accounting for its employee share-based paymemsadions. Accordingly, stock compensation cost is
measured at the date of grant and estimated usinggtion pricing model. Stock issued to an emp®®
compensation is measured at fair value based ogrém date quoted market price. The compensatistfor
share-based awards with service conditions is aredrbver the vesting period of the awards usieg th
straight-line method provided that the amount ahpensation cost recognized at any date must dtdgasl
the portion of the grant date fair value of the althat is vested at that date.

The Company accounts for stock options grantedctouaterparty other than an employee in accordaitte
FASB ASC 505 “Equity”. Fair value of the equity tnsments is recognized on the measurement datehvidic
the earlier of (i) a commitment for performancethg counterparty to earn the equity instrumentadgetached
or (ii) the counterparty’s performance being cortgaile

Retirement costs

Retirement cost contributions relating to definedtdbution plans are made based on a percentathe of
relevant employees’ salaries and are includedearctinsolidated statement of operations and compséere
income as they become payable. The assumptionsrusattulating the obligation for retirement cost
contributions depend on the local economic enviremtninterpretations and practices in respect tifere
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and o§lownership remain with the lessor are accoufueds
operating leases. Payments made under operatisgsi@at of any incentives received from the lessas
charged to the consolidated statement of operaindscomprehensive income on a straight-line lmagis the
period of the relevant leases.

Assets leased out under operating leases are attind'Property, plant and equipment” in the coitaikd
balance sheet. They are depreciated over the egaseful lives on a basis consistent with sinolaned items
of property, plant and equipment. Rental income @h@ny incentives given to lessees) is recognmed
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v)

(w)

)

)

@

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings or loss per share of common stoctrigouted by dividing the net income or loss awdddo
common shareholders for the year by the weightedagye number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings or loss per share of common stefticts the potential dilution that could occusécurities or
other contracts/arrangements to issue shares ahoorstock were exercised or converted into shdres o
common stock. Common equivalent shares, compribgatiemental shares of common stock issuable tipen
exercise of stock options, are included in dilutadhings or loss per share if they have a dilugifect by
application of the treasury stock method.

Treasury stock

The Company accounts for the acquired shares ofitscapital stock (“treasury stock”) in accordamgth
Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 43, Chapid3, and Accounting Principles Board Opinion Np. 6
“Status of Accounting Research Bulletins”. The aafsthe acquired treasury stock is shown as a dentufrom
shareholders’ equity. Gains on sale of treasurgkstot previously accounted for as constructiveigsued are
credited to additional paid-in capital while losses charged to additional paid-in capital to tkieet that
previous net gains from the sale or retiremenhefdame class of stock are included therein, ofkertle loss
is charged to retained earnings/accumulated deficit

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the diolated change in equity of the Company during é&oge
from transactions and other events and circumssageauding transactions resulting from investméyts
owners and distributions to shareholders. Totatpeatprehensive income (loss) includes net incomessr for
the year as well as additional other compreheriam@me (loss). The Company’s other comprehensivenre
(loss) consists of the Company’s share of otherpzehensive income of jointly-controlled entitiesrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale investmamsforeign currency translation adjustments,edbrded net
of tax.

Accruals and loss contingencies

The Company makes provision for all loss contingesierhen information available prior to the issuan€the
consolidated financial statements indicates thiatprobable that an asset has been impairediabiéity has
been incurred at the date of the consolidated filshistatements and the amount of loss can be mabo
estimated.

For provision or accruals related to litigationcisbinsurance, property tax, etc, the company makevisions
based on information from legal counsel and th¢ éstsmation of management. The company assesses th
potential liability to be recorded if the contingsrioss is probable and the amount of loss careagonably
estimated. The actual resolution of the contingenay differ from the Company’s estimates. If thatomgency
was settled for an amount greater than the estjradtgure charge to income would result. Likewis#he
contingency was settled for an amount that istleas our estimates, a future credit to income woestdlt.

Segment reporting

The Company follows FASB ASC 280 “Segment Repoftimgiring fiscal 2013, the Company operated and
managed its business in three segments. The Conaéryd the home appliance business in January a0d2
thus the home appliance segment is presentediasantinued operation. The accounting policies usets
segment reporting are the same as those used liagbging of its results in the consolidated ficiah
statements.
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(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

(ad)

Warranty cost

The Company estimates its warranty provision fdective products based on various factors includimey
likelihood of defects, an evaluation of its quakityntrols, technical analysis, industry informatmncomparable
companies and its own experience. Based on thesatmnsideration, the Company has accrued for wigrran
costs of US$403,627 for the year ended March 3132R012: US$729,528 and 2011: US$296,410). This bas
and the amount of the warranty accrual are revieavebadjusted periodically based on actual expegien

Government grants

Government grants are recognized when receivedhenstipulated activities are achieved. Such ansoarg
included in other income in the consolidated staenof operations and comprehensive income.

Retained Earnings and Reserves

The Company'’s retained earnings are not restriasetth the payment of dividends except to the extietated
by prudent business practices. The Company belignatshere are no material restrictions, includiorgign
exchange controls, on the ability of its non-PR@8ssdiaries to transfer surplus funds to the Comparie
form of cash dividends, loans, advances or purchadéh respect to the Company’s PRC subsidiatiese are
restrictions on the payment of dividends and tis¢rithution of dividends from the PRC. On March 2607, the
PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprisertre Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. Please refer to Note 17uidinér details of the New Law. The New Law becafffiective
from January 1, 2008. Prior to the enactment oNbe/ Law, when dividends were paid by the CompafRC
subsidiaries, such dividends would reduce the atnaiureinvested profits and accordingly, the refufidaxes
paid might be reduced to the extent of tax apple#td profits not reinvested. Subsequent to thetmment of the
New Law, due to the removal of tax benefit relatedeinvestment of capital in PRC subsidiaries,Gloenpany
may not reinvest the profits made by the PRC sidnsés. Payment of dividends by PRC subsidiaridsiteign
investors on profits earned subsequent to Jany&§dB will also be subject to withholding tax unttee New
Law. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC fatjons, a certain portion of the profits made hgse
subsidiaries must be set aside for future capitastment and are not distributable, and the regidtcapital of
the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are also restritlader applicable PRC regulations, foreign-invested
enterprises in China may pay dividends only ouhefr accumulated profits, if any, determined ic@dance
with PRC accounting standards and regulationsdttitian, a foreign-invested enterprise in Chinaeiguired to
set aside at least 10% of its after-tax profit base PRC accounting standards each year for itergereserves
until the cumulative amount of such reserves rea&l®86 of its registered capital. These reserveaare
distributable as cash dividends. The board of thrsmf a foreign-invested enterprise has the digmn to
allocate a portion of its after-tax profits to $taklfare and bonus funds, which may not be diateld to equity
owners except in the event of liquidation. Howevlee, Company believes that such restrictions vatllrave a
material effect on the Company’s liquidity or cdkiws.

Statutory Reserves

The PRC subsidiaries are required by the relexaars Bnd regulation to transfer at least 10% of tduféér-tax
profit determined in accordance with the PRC actiagrrules and regulations to a statutory surpéserve
until such reserve balance reaches 50% of theistexgd capital.

The Company transferred US$1,238,361 and Nil oatftef-tax income of its PRC subsidiaries to tlagory
reserves for the years ended March 31, 2013 an@, 284pectively.

The statutory reserves can only be utilized toatffsior years’ losses or for capitalization adgiai capital. No
distribution of the remaining reserves shall be enather than upon liquidation of the PRC subsidgri
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Recent accounting pronouncements

(i) In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011*Bhlance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Qffget
Assets and Liabiliti€s which requires entities to disclose both grosd aet information about both instruments
and transactions eligible for offset in the statetrod financial position and instruments and tratisas subject
to an agreement similar to a master netting agraerfe objective of the disclosure is to facitabmparison
between those entities that prepare their finarste&tements on the basis of U.S. GAAP and thostesrthat
prepare their financial statements on the basiBRS. In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01,
“Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scopd®@fclosures about Offsetting Asset and Liabilitieshich
clarifies the scope of the offsetting disclosureA®U 2011-11. Both ASUs are effective for fiscalys, and
interim periods within those years, beginning omafter January 1, 2013. Retrospective presentétioall
comparative periods presented is required. The @ompelieves that its adoption of these ASUs voll imave
any material impact on its consolidated financiatements.

(i)  In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-@2omprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Artou
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Compreherisn@mé, which requires entities to provide information
about the amounts reclassified out of accumulatieercomprehensive income by component. In addition
entities are required to present, either on the &dc¢he statement where net income is presentetdtbe notes,
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulaidder comprehensive income by the respectiveit@mas of
net income but only if the amount reclassifiedeiguired under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified to nebime in
its entirety in the same reporting period. For otraounts that are not required under U.S. GAAPeto
reclassified in their entirety to net income, eesitare required to cross-reference to other discés required
under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail bage amounts. This ASU is effective prospectivety f
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20h2 adoption of ASU 2013-02 does not have aneriat
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

4.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

Us$ uss$
Cash on hand and at banks............ccccccevcvemmmnnn... 24,551,490 27,680,158
Money market funds............ccovvviiiiiiiceceeenn 7,833,886 12,112,575
Total cash and cash equivalents ............ccceeeen...n, 32,385,376 39,792,733

The cash on hand and at banks in our PRC subssliare denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”), United 8satlollars
(“US$") and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") with the tdtamount equivalent to RMB61,563,027 (equivalent to
US$9,911,137) and RMB53,638,273 (equivalent to USEKB175) as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, respdytiQ#
these amounts, RMB56,510,003 (equivalent to US$9622) and RMB53,219,866 (equivalent to US$8,443)) 28e
originally denominated in RMB as of March 31, 2GiR1 2012, respectively. RMB is not freely conveetiinto other
currencies; however, under Mainland China’s Foréggohange Control Regulations and Administratioiseftlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulatibaszompany is permitted to exchange RMB for otherencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchdngsiness. Other than RMB, the cash on hand amahits of the
Company in Hong Kong and the United States areméraied in HK$ and US$.

5. RESTRICTED CASH

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, time deposits of RB40,000 (equivalent to US$14,592,289) and
RMB28,649,739 (equivalent to US$4,546,062) respebtiwere deposited with and pledged to banks targecredit
facilities granted to the Company, including rewogvbank loans.
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6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of available-for-salétland equity securities, which are all non-retdc as of
March 31, 2013 and 2012:

Net unrealized

Cost gains Fair values
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
us$ Us$ Us$ us$ Us$ Us$
Current assets:
Unlisted inveStMENtS..........coovvvveeeeeiiiieeeeeeiine. — 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000
Listed equity SECUILIES.........ueveeiiieiei e, 3,138 3,138 14,015 2,928 17,153 6,066
3,138 2,003,138 14,015 2,928 17,153 2,006,066

Non-current assets:
Unlisted investments.............cccoccevicinienncniene, 1,000,000 1,000,000 45,200 33,800 1,045,200 1,033,800

1,003,138 3,003,138 59,215 36,728 1,062,353 3,039,866

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, investments totadli§$2,235 and US$2,335 were in unrealized losgiposiof
US$1,839 and US$1,952 respectively. During theafigears ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 gmifisant
gain or loss was recognized on the disposal o€ttvapany’s available-for-sale debt securities.

The fair values of listed equity securities aredabgn quoted market prices at the balance she=t dat

Unlisted investments which have terms of 2 yeagsnagasured at fair value using a price quotedthiré party, such
as broker or bank, at the balance sheet date.

The net unrealized gains consisted of gross uzezhljains as at the fiscal years ended March 313,2012 and
2011 of US$61,054, US$38,680 and US$14,676, reispictand gross unrealized losses as at the fisgls ended
March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 of US$1,839, US$1z06PUS$1,913, respectively.

The proceeds from the disposal of available-foe-#@avestments for the fiscal years ended Marct2813, 2012 and
2011 were US$2,000,000, US$9,000,000 and US$1%5336respectively.
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7. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
us$ Us$
Accounts receivable........cccoooiiie e 9,673,986 13,318,143
Bills receivable ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 10,039,622 16,954,919
Accounts and bills receivable ..............cccceeevineen. 19,713,608 30,273,062
Fiscal years ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013 2012 2011
us$ Us$ us$
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year.........ccccceeeeeennn.. — 768 115,024
AdAItIONS .o — — 768
Amount written-off as uncollectible during the
fiscal Year.......ccooooviiiiiiii e — (768) (115,024)
Balance at end of fiscal year............... e e veeveneenn — — 768
8. INVENTORIES
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
Us$ us$
Raw materials.........ccooovviiiiiiiiie e 2,791,811 2,716,414
WOIK iN PrOgreSS ...ccovvveviiiieieeeeeeescmmmmmsseveeerenaaaeeeens 878,718 780,588
Finished goods .........cccuvviiiiiiiiii e e 1,721,803 1,877,190
5,392,332 5,374,192
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 201228dd, a write-down of inventories to fair marketue of
US$867,312, US$932,848 and US$405,313 respectiwely,recognized in the consolidated statement efatipns
and comprehensive income, of which nil, US$548,288 US$42,004 were included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations.
9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A related party is any party that controls, jointlyntrols or can significantly influence the manageat or operating
policies of the Company. Such parties would alstuite affiliates, investments accounted for byehaity method,
principal shareholders, management, directors laméhtmediate family members of principal shareh@de
management or directors.

In addition to the transactions and balances @et@lsewhere in the consolidated financial statésfen the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the @oyripad the following material transactions witlated parties
during those years:

The Company incurred annual motor car rental exggefar the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 20122011 of
approximately US$57,245, US$57,068 and US$57,2ectively which were payable to a related company

The Company incurred annual real estate rentalresgeefor the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 201 2011 of
approximately US$346,662, US$451,507 and US$713/E3pectively, payable to two directors of Globath and
certain related companies of which certain of th&iectors are also directors of Global-Tech. Ideld in the aforesaid
annual real estate rental expenses were amoultS$##39,811, US$318,743 and US$478,635 paid totdie(ne
director in fiscal 2013 and two directors in fis@@l12 and 2011) of Global-Tech, during the fisadng ended
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, whiehe included in their remuneration for the respediscal years
as housing allowances.

The amount due from a related party, of which dinta® directors of Global-Tech was a shareholdesfadarch 31,

2013, and two directors of Global-Tech were shddshe as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, is unsecimggtest-free
and has no fixed terms of prepayments.
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
us$ Us$
Leasehold improvements and buildings............. 28,511,687 28,102,876
Plant and machinery...........ccccccoovivivemememeeeeeeennn 35,469,194 34,922,469
MOUIAS ..ot 386,554 386,482
Transportation equipmeNt........cccceeeeveesimmmmeeeeenns 1,552,518 1,581,372
Furniture, fixtures and equipment...................... 5,885,172 5,431,091
Construction in Progress. ..........eeeeveeeeeccceeeeeeeens 2,288,034 4,760
74,093,159 70,429,050
Less: Accumulated depreciation............ccce.e..... (47,564,478) (48,495,263)
Property, plant and equipment, net.................... 26,528,681 21,933,787

(@) During the fiscal years ended March 31, 200322and 2011, impairment losses relating to prgpgetant and
equipment of nil, US$1,230,727 and nil, respectivelere recognized in the consolidated statement of
operations and comprehensive income for certainaspplant and machinery, and furniture, fixtured a
equipment which are no longer used in the operstidthe Company. The impairment loss of US$1,230,7
was recognized in “Income (Loss) from discontinegérations” during the fiscal year ended MarchZ311,2.
No impairment loss was recognized for the yeargdidarch 31, 2013 and 2011.

(b) As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, buildings wiggeegate net book values of approximately US$13:ub
US$14,899, respectively, were situated in Hong Kand manufacturing facilities with aggregate neaikbo
values of approximately US$9,987,761 and US$1138%, respectively, were situated in Mainland ChiFtze
land where the manufacturing facilities were siédas held under certain land use rights that exfire in 2043.
Up to March 31, 2013, the Company has obtainedabk portion of the property ownership certificater its
buildings (29 out of a total of 40 properties). Tpplication for the remaining property ownersteptificates
will commence only after the land use right cectifes for the relevant pieces of land are obtained.

(c) The amounts of depreciation charged for theafigears ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were
US$3,342,484, US$3,463,480 and US$3,238,356 ragphctOf which, nil, US$1,522,962 and US$1,599,996
were included in “Income (Loss) from discontinugzbmtions”.

(d) The loss on disposal of property, plant andggent recognized during the fiscal years endedch&d, 2013,
2012 and 2011 amounted to US$43,311, US$86,018)8%8,662, respectively which were recognized in
income (loss) from continuing operations. The gairdisposal of property, plant and equipment of 85669,
nil and nil was recognized during fiscal years ehi&arch 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and was includégciome
(loss) from discontinued operations.

(e) The amount of additions to property, plant egdipment during the fiscal years ended March 81322012
and 2011 were US$7,613,631, US$814,247 and US$86&Primarily included expansion of existing clean
room space and purchase of equipment and machislatgd to our COB facility, most of which was indéd
in construction in progress.

27



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. LAND USE RIGHTS, NET

Land use rights represent prepayments under opgratses for land use for a predetermined timiegefhey are
charged to the consolidated statement of operaindscomprehensive income over the lease periodsstraight-line
basis. The Company has the rights to use certatepiof land located in Mainland China and hasimédeor is in the
process of obtaining the land use rights certifisatovering a substantial portion of such landsAOgust 26, 2006,
the Company entered into a supplementary agreewignthe Dongguan local government regarding treeafsa
piece of land with a total area of 45,208 squargersevhich the Company had occupied. Pursuanteto th
supplementary agreement, the Company has vacqtedien of this land (13,698 square meters in agagpe), which
was previously used as a recreational area, andrhesged to use the remaining portion of the [&ig510 square
meters) until August 6, 2043. However, the Compaay to pay monthly fees of RMB59,248 (approximately
US$9,039) to the local government for the peri@arfrJanuary 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008 and RMB483,
(approximately US$31,079) from January 1, 2009 odwantil August 6, 2043. Up to March 31, 2013, @@npany
has obtained a sizable portion of its land usetsigbrtificates covering 183,900 square meter®battotal area of
207,300 square meters. The application of certaipgrty ownership certificates as further detaitedote 10 to the
consolidated financial statements commences otdy Hfe land use rights certificates for the refg\@eces of land
have been obtained. The Company is in the prodesistaining the remaining land use rights and priypawnership
certificates. However, no definitive time frame lwe®n provided by the Dongguan local governmei agen the
certificates will be provided to the Company.

12. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, Cansorinvestment (BVI) Limited (“CIBL") effectivelyisposed of
70% of its equity interest in Lite Array Holdings Anwell as part of an arrangement to set up & ja@nture in
Mainland China to exploit the opportunity in thevdlspment and manufacturing of OLED equipment. 8gbsnt to
the completion of the disposal, the Company stihins 2,400,000 common stock of Lite Array Holdingepresenting
a 30% equity interest in Lite Array Holdings thréu@IBL. The Company accounts for its interest itelArray
Holdings and its subsidiaries (collectively referte as the “jointly-controlled entities”), in whiche Company does
not have unilateral control, but joint control, @ndhe equity method.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities a® follows:

Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest attributable to
Name registration the Company Principal activities
Lite Array Holdings Limited...................... British Virgin Islands 3C Investment hold
Dongguan Litewell (OLED) Technology PRC 3C Research and development
Limited* ... OLED equipn
Litewell Technology (HK) Limited*.......... Hong Kan 3C Design and trading of O

production equipr
and trading of OLED prodt
and corresponding mat

* Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Lite Array Holdingsnited

The Company has discontinued the recognition cflitee of losses of the jointly-controlled entitiecause the share of
losses of the jointly-controlled entities exceetleel Company’s interests in the jointly-controlledites. The Company has
no further obligation to fund operations.
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12. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continugd

The following table illustrates the summarized finil information of the Company’s jointly-contret! entities:

As of or for the years ended December 31*

2012 2011
uss$ uss$
CUIreNt aSSEtS .......veiviiiiii e e 259,760 331,826
NoON-CUrrent assetS........ccceveeiiieiiii i cemem e e 1,496,549 1,705,652
Current liabilities.........uuvevieeeeeeee e e e e (5,164,836) (4,746,605)
REVENUE.......coii e, 4,086 5,219
Operating EXPENSES .......coevcevvviriiiririeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees (619,669) (869,179)
L= B (o SR PRSRP (703,124) (553,065)

* The financial year end date of Lite Array Holdsgimited

13. WARRANTY PROVISION

Included in other accrued liabilities are warraptgvisions of US$403,627, US$729,528 and US$296a416f
March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, ndwehich are from discontinued operations. The Conyza
warranty activity during the fiscal years ended &ha81, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is summarized below:

Fiscal years ended

March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013 2012 2011
us$ us$ us$
Balance at beginning of fiscal year.........ccccceevvvvvivennnnnnn. 729,528 296,410 180,151
Additional ProvisSion ...........cooeciviiiierirm e — 473,551 192,408
Reversal of unutilized amounts..............ceeemmvveeeeriineenennn (325,901) (40,433) (76,149)
Balance at end of fiscal year ...............cmm e e e eeevvvvnnnnnnn 403,627 729,528 296,410
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14.

15.

SHORT TERM BANK LOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES

Global-Tech has provided a bank with: (i) an uniedicorporate guarantee for general banking feeslgranted to
certain subsidiaries of the Company; and (ii) aiggcagreement over bank deposits of HK$10.0 orill{equivalent
to US$1,288,244) for general banking facilitiesrgeal to a subsidiary of the Company without obtajniritten
consent of the bank for general facilities granteids Hong Kong subsidiaries. The Company has nogesits to
banks as security for credit facilities grantedh® PRC subsidiaries, including bank loans and piilyable.

The Company has credit facilities with a numbebaifks amounting to the equivalent of US$15,880488
US$4,309,111 as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 resdetiOf these amounts, HK$10.0 million (equivalemt
US$1,288,244) and HK$2.4 million (equivalent to \38%,111) were denominated in Hong Kong dollarsfas o
March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The faesitire secured by the Company’s deposits whicteatected in
use.

Banking facilities of US$4,826,241 and HK$10,599tkwotal equivalent to US$4,827,607) and US$4,000,and
HK$8,488 (with total equivalent to US$4,001,093evatilized as of March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Banking facilities of HK$9,989,401 (equivalent t&$1,286,878) and RMB60,661,802 (equivalent to UB#9048)
remained unutilized as of March 31, 2013, and HR$2,512 (equivalent to US$308,018) remained uzetilias of
March 31, 2012.

The weighted average interest rate of the banksléanthe years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 wi&®and
1.02% per annum respectively with an average ntgatofil89 and 87 days from March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Holders of common stock of Global-Tech have one Yot each stock held on all matters submittedote at a
shareholders’ meeting of Global-Tech. Subject tortghts of the holders of stock with preferentiabther special
rights which may be authorized in the future, haddef common stock of Global-Tech are entitledeceive dividends
pro rataout of assets legally available therefore andhéndvent of the winding up of Global-Tech, to shatably in
all assets remaining after payment of liabiliti€$stobal-Tech. The Board of Directors of Global-fieway declare
interim dividends and recommend a final annualdéiwid from retained earnings available for cashdéivils as
determined for statutory purposes at such timesrasdch amounts as they may determine. Dividenalg only be
declared and paid out of surplus.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, tharBmf Directors of Global-Tech authorized an armeet to
Global-Tech’'s Memorandum of Association to effedt-for-1 reverse stock split (the “Reverse StocktJmf the
issued and outstanding common stock of Global-Teffactive from December 10, 2008 (the “Effectivate’).

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, Gléketh also proportionally reduced the authorizechiper of shares
of its common and preferred stock to 12,500,00025@]000, respectively. On the Effective Day, evileryr shares of
common stock of Global-Tech issued and outstanaingf the Effective Date were consolidated into simere of
post-reverse split common stock.
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16. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET

2013 2012 2011
us$ US$ Us$
Foreign exchange gains (losses), Net......ccccvececeeeeeennn. 23,900 184,706 (549,771)
Gains (Losses) on disposal of property, plant and
(=0 [UT] o] T=T oL SOOI 463,358 (86,015) (3,662)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment. .......... — (1,230,727) —
Rental income from other third parties.......cccceeevvvnnnnen. 177,556 — 9,886
Management fee received from other third party........ — — 18,641
Reversal (Accrual) for potential tax surcharge,.net..... (60,622) 46,086 (80,472)
Reversal of compensation for potential litigation......... — 500,000 —
Government grantS..............eeeeennnnn 443,468 439,471 856,372
Sale of scrap materials 213,718 — —
Others 310,201 69,978 60,056
1,571,579 (76,501) 311,050
Other income (expenses), net from:
2013 2012 2011
us$ Us$ us$
ContinuUINg OPEratioNS........uuuvieriieeeeeeierrree e e e e seeieeeeen 845,806 1,116,279 370,274
Discontinued operations...............ccovvvieeeeemise e e e 725,773 (1,192,780) (59,224)
1,571,579 (76,501) 311,050

17. INCOME TAXES

Global-Tech and its subsidiaries are subject torme taxes on an entity basis on the taxable inansmg in or
derived from the respective tax jurisdictions inieththey are domiciled or deemed to operate. Gidlegh and its
investment holding subsidiaries incorporated inBhi&sh Virgin Islands (“BVI”) are not subject t@x in the BVI in
accordance with the BVI

tax regulations. The Company conducts substantiillgf its businesses and operations throughuitsisliaries
located in

Hong Kong and Mainland China.

The Company’s operating subsidiaries are subjecatious statutory tax rates, according to theaetye
jurisdictions in which they operate. The Comparsgigsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kprufits tax at
a rate of 16.5% on their assessable income arisirgng Kong during the fiscal years ended MarchZi113, 2012
and 2011. The Company’s former subsidiary in Mawas exempted from Macau Complementary Tax.

The Company'’s subsidiaries registered in the PRE&uding DWS and DGLAD, are subject to PRC corpoiatome
tax on income as reported in their PRC statutocpants, adjusted in accordance with relevant PRGnire tax laws
and regulations. DWS and DGLAD are located in sstalaopen economic zone in Mainland China and, raocgly,
were entitled to a preferential tax rate of 27%2#duced tax rate and 3% local income tax ratefhi® calendar
years ended prior to December 31, 2008. DuringtHeession of the YNational People’s Congress of the PRC,
which was concluded on March 16, 2007, a unifieirgmise income tax law, or EIT was approved anchbe
effective on January 1, 2008. The New EIT Law idtroed a wide range of changes which include thication of
the income tax rate for domestic-invested and fprénvested enterprises at 25%. DGLAD is entitlea@ tax
concession period (“Tax Holiday”), whereby it waempted from corporate income tax for its first tprofit-making
years and is entitled to a 50% tax reduction ferghicceeding three years. DGLAD has qualified ldsgh and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”). Accordingly, aftdre expiry of its Tax Holiday in December 2011, Db
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued)

became subject to a preferential tax rate of 15ftntencing from January 2012. The EIT of DWS fordisgears
2013, 2012 and 2011 remained 25%.

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:

2013 2012 2011
us$ Uss$ us$
Continuing Operations
Income tax expense (benefit):
CUITENE. .ttt e e (820,039) 1,229,229 110,215
Deferred..... .o (21,861) (604) 93,907
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing openst...... (841,900) 1,228,625 204,122
2013 2012 2011
us$ us$ us$
Discontinued Operations
Income tax expense:
LU =T o | PP RPRERPT — 25,263 —
Income tax expense from discontinued operations.......... — 25,263 —
Total income tax expense (benefit)........ccceeeeviiiiieeenn. (841,900) 1,253,888 204,122

The reconciliation of income tax expense (benefithputed at the Hong Kong statutory income taxt@atbe total
income (loss) from continuing operations and disicored operations before income taxes at the éffeatcome tax
rate is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
USs$ us$ us$
Income tax expenses (benefit) at the Hong Kong
statutory income tax rate ........ccoeevvvvvececmemrevnerennnns (480,671) 440,752 (657,339)
Foreign rate differential .............cccocoviccceeeeiviiviininnnne, 30,822 200,857 (69,068)
Non-taxable other income...........ccoceeeiiimecenee e, (386,664) (294,827) (79,153)
Non-tax deductible expenses .............ccovcceeeeeeeeeeienns 670,389 1,124,153 554,562
Under (over) provision of tax in prior periods........... (1,314,491) 206,387 149,531
Unrecognized (utilized) tax benefits.........ccccevvneeeeee. 223,959 569,997 (1,110,579)
Changes in valuation allowance..............ccceeeevvvvnnnn. 414,756 (993,431) 1,416,168
Total income tax expense (benefit) at the Company’s
effective income tax rate.......cccoeevvvvvvvieeeeneeerrennnn. (841,900) 1,253,888 204,122
Hong Kong statutory income tax rate ... eeee.. 16.5% 16.5% 16.5%
Effective income tax rate ..........coccvvvevicmmemeee e, 28.9% 46.9% (5.0%)
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March2®1,3 and 2012 comprise the following:

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Deferred tax assets:
Impairment of property, plant and
(<To (01T o]0 LT o | AR
Provision for inventories..............cccceeeeee..
Provision for warranty ..........cccccceeeeeiiennn
Operating losses carried forward............

Gross deferred tax assets......o.occevveeeennnn.
Less: Valuation allowance for deferred tax
ASSELS ...

Net deferred tax assetS........coooevvevevvvmmemen.

Deferred tax liabilities:
Other temporary differences...................
Tax over book depreciation of property,
plant and equipment.........cccccceeeeeiiiiiimnnns

Total deferred tax liabilities.....................

Valuation allowance:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year..........coceeo....
Additions (reversals) .........cccccvvvvnnnn.
Exchange realignment......................

Balance at end of fiscal year............... commmeeeeen.

Uss$ Us$
2,031,131 2,097,590
196,834 126,016
111,903 191,653
3,418,116 2,770,145
5,757,984 5,185,404
(5,757,984) (5,185,404)
(5,180) (27,017)
(5,180) (27,017)
Fiscal years ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013 2012 2011
US$ Uss$ US$
5,185,404 6,057,516 4,553,687
414,756 (993,431) 1,416,168
157,824 121,319 87,661
5,757,984 5,185,404 6,057,516

For financial reporting purposes, the Company Issatdished valuation allowances by tax jurisdictiondeferred tax
assets, which management believes are more likalyhot to be realized in the foreseeable futuseofAMarch 31,
2013 and 2012, the Company had tax losses caniadid of US$23,591,422 and US$20,843,486, respgfi
which included tax losses of US$4,114,021 and UB3R670 respectively that are available indefigifel offsetting
against future taxable income of the companiestiithwvthese losses arose. Tax losses of US$19,47 &4D
US$18,646,816 as at March 31, 2013 and 2012, réeekyc may be carried back for 2 years or carfaavard for 20

years from the year the tax losses arose.

A reconciliation of the movements of unrecognizaxd henefits under FASB ASC 740 during the fiscargeended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, exclusive of related @gteand penalties, is as follows:
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued)

Fiscal years ended

March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

us$ us$
Balance at beginning of fiscal year....................... 9,117,443 7,437,277

Additions based on tax positions related to the

(ol 14T 01 /=T U 799,637 1,946,753
Reduction for tax positions related to prior year.... (1,070,199) (415,227)
Exchange realignment.............coccvvvvviimccccc e, 23,796 148,640
Balance at end of fiscal year...............commmeeeeeeene. 8,870,677 9,117,443

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s urgeized tax benefits under FASB ASC 740 of US$4,838,
and US$5,701,782, respectively, are presenteckicdhsolidated balance sheets within income tazlgay The
remaining balance of US$3,991,339 and US$3,415664f March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, areféagainst
the corresponding tax losses carried forward.

If the unrecognized tax benefits under FASB ASC @g@f March 31, 2013 were realized in a futurégagethese
would result in a tax benefit of US$4,879,338 (US$3,782 as of March 31, 2012) and a reductioh®Qompany’s
effective tax rate.

For all the years presented and in accordanceisB ASC 740, the Company classified interest avtémtial
penalties relating to any underpayment of incormedand uncertain tax positions, if and when rexgljias interest
expense and other expenses, respectively. Foistted fears ended March 31, 2013 and 2011, the @oynpeversed
interest and potential penalties of US$1,021,39Vd8$227,702, respectively, relating to certainantain tax
positions in its consolidated statement of operatiand comprehensive income. For the fiscal yedeeéMarch 31,
2012, the Company accrued interest and potentialfies of US$121,032 relating to certain uncertainpositions in
its consolidated statement of operations and congmsve income. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012Cbepany had
accrued interest and potential penalties relatingnicertain tax positions amounting to US$651, 721 @S$1,667,602,
respectively.

One of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries wader examination by the Hong Kong tax authoritptiior
years. The tax period open for examination by #xeatuthority included the fiscal years ended M&th2003 through
2011. During fiscal 2013, the Company’s subsidemyg the Hong Kong tax authority reached an agrettoesettle
the tax audit case with additional assessabletprofiHK$12,520,654 (equivalent to US$1,612,967hdpeaised
together with penalty and interest on tax undegddyrfor which the amount had already been providedithin
FASB ASC 740. The amounts of penalty and intenegseéeses were HK$2,000,000 and HK$466,249 (equivaten
US$257,649 and US$60,064), respectively, which werkeded in “Other income, net” and “Interest inu®, net”
from continuing operations.

The PRC tax authorities could determine that atgrinompany payable account in accordance with BREBP
could be deemed income if such inter-company p&gatdn not to be settled and therefore would bestio
taxation. In accordance with FASB ASC 740, we eatdd our position and determined that such intengamy
payables will be settled, particularly since pgear tax assessments have been confirmed by the@®®Rithorities
and such inter-company payables were not deemiet@se.

Except as noted above, based on existing tax regudain the Company’s various operating jurisdio, tax years
2010-2012 remain open to possible tax examinatjorelevant tax authorities.

The Company has not provided for possible incomed@n the undistributed earnings of foreign subsiks that are
considered to be reinvested indefinitely.
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18.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As previously disclosed and discussed elsewhett@srannual report, the Company completed itsfesih the home
appliance business in January 2012.

In the fiscal periods preceding the Company’s &gin the home appliance business, profit margirsbdeen rapidly
decreasing, due at least in part, to the rising absaw materials and labor in the PRC, togethighn the unwillingness
or inability of our customers to offset these cdbtough pricing increases. Customer pricing dersarwlonger
reflected actual production costs and as a rasaltgins in recent years approached unacceptalds)evith the home
appliance segment actually suffering significassks in fiscal 2011.

In accordance with guidance contained in FASB AB6-20 “Discontinued Operations”, the results ofragpiens for
the home appliance operations have been excludeddontinuing operations and reported as discoatiraperations
for the current and prior periods.

2013 2012 2011
Us$ us$ Us$

Net Sales.......cccoeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeee, — 53,885,407 43,485,638
Cost of goods sold.........ccevveeeveieeeeinnnne. — (44,386,508) (40,658,730)
Gross profit.........ceveeeeeevievienssmmeeveeenes — 9,498,899 2,826,908
Selling, general and administrative

EXPENSES...cvviieieeeeeeeieineees e eeeeees — (6,904,111) (4,511,573)
Other operating l0SS .........ccvvvvveeeeeisiicmnnes — — (31,990)
Operating profit (10SS).........cccccvvvereeen.n. — 2,594,788 (1,716,655)
Interest expense, Net......ccceevvvvvvevrniuumnnn. — (2,403) —
Other income (expense), net............... 725,773 (1,192,780) (59,224)
INnCome tax eXPensSesS.........coevvvvvvvevvvvennnnns — (25,263) —
Income (Loss) from discontinued

OPErations ......cccceeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiceccnininn, 725,773 1,374,342 (1,775,879)

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2013 repteskine sale of equipment and materials that hadqusly been
written off.

An impairment loss of US$1,230,727 was recognireithé income (loss) from discontinued operationfsical 2012
for machinery and equipment that was used in tleeadjpns of the home appliance segment.
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19. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share of comgtock of the Company for the fiscal years endadch 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 is computed in accordance with FASE 260 “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the nehieeys
(loss) for each fiscal year attributable to comrstotkholders by the weighted average number ofsharcommon

stock outstanding during that fiscal year.
The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

2013 2012 2011
Uss$ uss$ uss$

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)sbare:

Income (Loss) from continuing operations... (2,797,032) 42,994 (2,412,120)
Income (Loss) from continuing operations attrlbllmab
non-controlling iNterestS ..........c..vvvvees e vvvvveeeeeenns 107,958 (6,659) 175,028
Income (Loss) from continuing operations attriblgzto
shareholders of Global-Tech Advanced Innovations
oS (2,689,074) 36,335 (2,237,092)
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations ............. 725,773 1,374,342 (1,775,879)
Profit (Loss) attributable to common stockholders...... (1,963,301) 1,410,677 (4,012,971)
Number Number Number
Denominator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)ghare:
Weighted average number of shares of common stack.. 3,040,310 3,039,727 3,039,454
us$ Us$ Us$
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (Loss) from continuing operations ........... (0.88) 0.01 (0.74)
Earnings (Loss) from discontinued operations 0.23 0.45 (0.58)
Earnings (Loss) attributable to common stockholder.. (0.65) 0.46 (1.32)

369,752 and 365,369 stock options of Global-Tectevexcluded from the computation of diluted earsifigss) per
share for the fiscal years ended March 31, 20138dd respectively, because their inclusion wowadehbeen

anti-dilutive.

During the fiscal year ended March 31,2012, theyhteid average share price of the Company duringaghewas
below the exercise prices of all stock optionstadarch 31, 2012, resulting in no incremental comrsbares for that

year for the purpose of diluted earnings per shateulation.
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20.

21.

COMMITMENTS

@)

(b)

Capital commitments

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company hadaagymmitments contracted but not provided for of
US$4,211,595 and US$169,682, respectively, foptirehase of property, plant and equipment.

Operating lease commitments

In addition to the land use rights described irerit to the consolidated financial statementsCihimpany has
entered into various operating lease arrangementsafking lots, motor vehicles, equipment, land effice
premises. The Company recorded rental expensdsidaxg the land use rights payments described ia b to
the consolidated financial statements, for theafiyears ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 0865918,
US$352,206 and US$445,327, respectively, and recoliehse rental income of US$177,556, nil and &S0,
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012241d, respectively. Future minimum lease paymenter
non-cancelable operating leases as of March 313 aad 2012 were as follows:

March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

us$ us$

Payable:

Within ONe year...........ccoceeiiiiiiiev e 754,386 511,654
Over one year but not exceeding two years....... 374,706 521,448
Over two years but not exceeding three years.. 352,478 369,319
Over three years but not exceeding four years.. 352,478 347,410
Over four years but not exceeding five years.... 352,478 347,410
OVEr fiVE YEAIS.....veviieeee e eeee e 8,929,433 9,136,892
11,115,959 11,234,133

Subsequent to March 31, 2013, the subsidiarieeoCompany renewed the tenancy agreements witleldted
companies and extended the leasing term for onetgedarch 31, 2014, with future lease paymentsafue
US$75,362 not reflected in the table above.

CONTINGENCIES

€Y

(b)

On October 11, 2004, Best Hero Limited (“Best®?) issued a writ in the Court of First Instarudehe High
Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) against a sithary of the Company for a claim of US$4,250,400e
claim related to two purchase orders issued btifssidiary on May 31, 2004 and June 1, 2004, réispég to
Best Hero for the purchase of LCD television paf&is total purchase price of US$4,620,000. Howehe
LCD television panels which were paid for in thigial shipment were determined to be unacceptabtbe
subsidiary. Accordingly, further delivery of themaining orders was refused. Best Hero allegedtheat
subsidiary had repudiated the contract, and thezéBest Hero instituted legal proceedings to clindamages.
A defence and counter-claim was filed by the subsydn the High Court on December 28, 2004. BestdH
filed a Reply and Defence to Counterclaim on Jantéar 2005. No further activity occurred in thiseahrough
March 31, 2013.

In accordance with FASB ASC 450 “Contingenciest @ompany believes that with such a lengthy inferva
between the claim being filed and there being niviacbetween the two parties, the probabilityttiiae
Company will incur a loss is remote. Accordinglye tprovision for this contingent liability of US®0million
was reversed during the year ended March 31, 2011.

As of March 31, 2013, the Company has accrisea @urrent liability US$4,879,338 for unrecognitaxi
benefits and US$651,721 of related interest andlfies. The unrecognized tax benefits relate mamly
potential transfer pricing arrangements reflectethe Hong Kong and PRC income tax returns of gerta
subsidiaries of the Company. The final outcoméhete tax uncertainties is dependent upon variotteraa
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21.

22.

23.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

including tax examinations, legal proceedings,aiarauthority proceedings, changes in regulatoryees and
interpretations of those tax laws, or expiratiorstatutes of limitation. However, based on the neindf
jurisdictions, the uncertainties associated wiilgdition, and the status of examinations, includhegyprotocols
of finalizing audits by the relevant tax authostievhich could include formal legal proceedinggréhis a high
degree of uncertainty regarding the future casfiamas associated with these tax uncertainties.

OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

us$ us$
ACCIUE EXPENSES....evvieieeeeeeie it emememmeeaeae e e e e e e nneens 2,241,659 2,587,698
Othertax payable ........cccevviiieieeeicecccee e, 997,001 2,189,302
Land use right payable — operating lease.................. 784,400 793,301

Other payables for procuring materials for cust@amer. 5,194,086 —
Other payable ...........coovvviiiiiiii e 426,492 1,067,550
9,643,638 6,637,851

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident FundPENlscheme and an Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORSO”) scheme for all its qualified doyges in Hong Kong. Both the MPF and the ORSO m&eare
defined contribution programs and are administereohdependent fund companies.

MPF is available to all employees aged 18 to 64wgith at least 60 days of service as an employgbeoCompany in
Hong Kong. Under the MPF scheme, both the Compadyeach of the qualified employee contribute theeloof 5%
of the employees’ basic salary and HK$1,250 (apprately US$161), subject to a cap of a monthly basiary of
HK$25,000 (approximately US$3,221). Qualified enygles are entitled to 100% of the Company's contiding
together with accrued returns irrespective of theigth of service with the Company, but the begaefie required by
law to be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

Certain full-time employees in Hong Kong who joirtké Company before December 2000 are eligiblatbgipate
in the ORSO scheme immediately following the datevbich they have completed their probationaryquerUnder
the ORSO scheme, both the Company and each oligitdeeemployee contribute 5% of the employeesibaalary.

The costs of these schemes recognized duringsta fyears ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 U®$48,075,
US$61,107 and US$72,878, respectively.

According to the relevant laws and regulationshim PRC, the Company is required to contribute 178%e
stipulated employee salary set by the local govemtrof Dongguan to certain social insurance, médicd retirement
benefit schemes for its employees. No forfeitedoutions may be used by the employer to redueeettisting level
of contributions. The Company also provides housingdical care and subsidized meals to all exidtotpry
employees. The aggregate amounts incurred by anided for the Company for all such benefits we&$tl,963,173
and US$2,547,639 during the fiscal years ended IMat¢ 2013 and 2011, respectively. However, asualtref the
payment of severance in accordance with governnodgd upon the exit from the Home Appliances sedntba
Company recognized a net benefit of US$449,55hdtie fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 due taversal of
social insurance provisions accrued for previousse
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24.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in three segments: Elect@oneponents, Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMghd
Others for the fiscal year ended 2013. These seggnaee operated and managed as separate strategiess units
that offer different products/services. The Compsfiglectronic Components” segment produces complaary
metal oxide semiconductor (“CMOS”) CCMs primarityr fsale to cellular phone and tablet manufacturekdainland
China. The Company’s EMS consists of surface mtaettnology (“SMT”) processing of printed circuitdrds and
assembly services for cellular phone marketers @&nhnd China. The Company’s “Others” segment casegra
number of immaterial product lines and developnpeagrams that have not materialized to date inigpfeduct
businesses. None of these units has ever indilidoedt the quantitative thresholds for determiniagortable
segments. The chief operating decision maker eteduhe results of each segment in assessing penfice and
allocating resources among the segments.

There were no material intersegment sales or wassfuring the fiscal years ended March 31, 200322nd 2011.

As stated in note 18 — “Discontinued OperationsNotfes to Consolidated Financial Statements, thadidppliance
segment was discontinued effective in January 20f4&.results of operations of the Home Applianggsnt have
been classified as “Income (Loss) from discontinapérations” on the face of the consolidated staterof
operations and comprehensive income. The segmefitt for fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 represdrdales of
equipments and materials that had previously beétew off.
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) The following table provides operating finaéiormation for the four reportable segments:

Home Electronic
Appliances# Components EMS Others Corporate Combined
uss$ uss$ Us$ Us$ uss$ uss$

As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013
Revenues from extern

customers.............. — 65,188,724 14,256,314 1,638,346 — 81,083,384
Capital expenditure.... — 6,484,577 767,186 358,813 3,055 7,613,631
Interest income........... — — — — 839,557 839,557
Interest expense......... — (109,749) — — 774,358 664,609
Depreciation and

amortization............ — 554,337 1,336,208 223,915 1,328,267 3,442,727
Segment profit (loss)... 725,773 3,687,547 (3,314,836) (1,182,894) (1,878,891) (1,963,301)
Total assets................ 34 29,618,065 16,203,482 1,114,654 61,289,608 108,225,843
As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012
Revenues from extern

customers.............. 53,885,407 54,431,519 14,439,926 781,260 — 123,538,112
Capital expenditure.... 240,763 226,277 273,926 73,281 — 814,247
Interest income........... — — — — 377,074 377,074
Interest expense......... (2,403) (104,517) — 321 (177,401) (284,000)
Depreciation and

amortization............ 1,522,962 594,746 1,268,736 76,809 98,577 3,561,830
Segment profit (loss)... 1,374,342 2,885,762 221,655 (640,020) (2,431,062) 1,410,677
Total assets................ 313,033 34,554,319 11,614,176 739,106 61,819,375 109,040,009
As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011
Revenues from extern

customers.............. 43,485,638 42,621,597 14,742,075 105,194 — 100,954,504
Capital expenditure.... 217,028 807,077 3,598,918 40,345 — 4,663,368
Interest income........... — — — — 498,837 498,837
Interest expense......... — (268,219) (2,604) — 308,173 37,350
Depreciation and

amortization............ 1,599,996 557,353 971,836 62,690 140,261 3,332,136
Segment profit (loss)... (1,775,879) 1,400,572 (695,296) (960,777) (1,981,591) (4,012,971)
Total assets................ 22,234,345 23,809,159 15,066,413 703,412 58,122,805 119,936,134

# As discussed in note 18, the Home Appliance sagmas discontinued on January 15, 2012. The sestithe
operations has been classified as discontinuecatipes on the face of the consolidated statemeapefations and

comprehensive income.

* An impairment loss of US$1,230,727 was recogniiretthe consolidated statement of operations antpbcehensive
income for machinery that was used in the operaifdhe Home Appliances segment in 2012. No impeirhioss

was recognized in 2013 and 2011.
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Net sales including net sales of discontinugerations by geographic area based on the locafionstomers are as
follows:
2013 2012 2011
uss$ uss$ us$
AUSEFAlIA. ... 533,077 501,665 562,066
BUMOPE ..ttt e 326,298 4,469,428 3,213,506
NOIrth AMENICA ...cevviiieiiiii e 49,423 47,969,847 38,808,728
ASIB it 80,174,586 70,596,126 58,360,791
Other regionS......cooooeveeiiiiiiec e ceceee e — 1,046 9,413
81,083,384 123,538,112 100,954,504
(c) Net sales including net sales of discontinugerations by product/service type
2013 2012 2011
uss$ us$ us$
Floor care products ...........eevvvveeiniiecccesriinieneenen — 51,056,019 40,013,087
Kitchen applianCes.......ccccccveveveiiciiiniiieeieeeeeee, 533,077 755,607 1,081,498
CCOMS ettt 63,913,523 53,094,225 41,592,838
Cellular phone assembly services............ccceem.. 14,256,314 14,439,927 14,648,779
OhEIS. .o e e 2,380,470 4,192,334 3,618,302
81,083,384 123,538,112 100,954,504
(d) Long-lived assets*
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
uss$ us$
HONG KONG .eniieiii e 150,734 210,800
Mainland China............cccccciiiiiiiiicce e, 29,404,484 24,806,115
29,555,218 25,016,915

* Long-lived assets represent land use rights anggaty, plant and equipment.
(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment losses of property, plant and eqeiprfor the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 20%&P
2011, amounted to nil, US$1,230,727 and nil, repely. The impairment loss for the fiscal year edd
March 31, 2012 was included in “Income (Loss) frdiscontinued operations”.
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24.

SEGMENT INFORMATION(continued)

(f)  Major customers

Customers accounting for 10% or more of the Comjsacgmbined net sales are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
uss uss$ us$
From continuing operations:
ZTE Corporation (“ZTE").....ccocceeeeiiiieeeaennne 9,011,148 24,227,414 8,797,843
Shenzhen Tinno Mobile Technology Co. Ltd.
(“TINNO™) ettt 8,636,784 13,018,044 13,677,827
Lenovo Mobile Communication Technology L
(“LENOVO") ettt 26,799,405 11,698,569 12,712,077
Dongguan Huabel Electronic Technology Co.
Ltd. (“Huabel”)......ccvveeiiieee, 9,799,379 5,245 109
From discontinued operations:
Electrolux S.A. and subsidiaries (“Electrolux”)..... — 52,339,623 42,006,085

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 212011, 11.1%, 19.6% and 8.7%, respectively®oflbmpany’s
combined net sales including discontinued operatisere made to ZTE, which is an unrelated custoAgnf

March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 11.2%, 58.9% antPd,7respectively of the Company’s total accounts lzitis
receivable were from ZTE. ZTE is a customer of@tmnpany’s electronic components and EMS segments.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2812011, 33.0%, 9.5% and 12.6%, respectively®flbmpany’'s
combined net sales including discontinued operatisere made to Lenovo, which is an unrelated custoAs of
March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 34.2%, 19.4% ar@PArespectively of the Company’s total accounts lzitis
receivable were from Lenovo. Lenovo is a custoniehe Company’s electronic components segment.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2812011, 10.7%, 10.5% and 13.61%, respectivellyef
Company’s combined net sales including discontimyserations were made to Tinno, which is an unedlaustomer.
As of March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 3.2%, 3.4%%680, respectively of the Company'’s total accoams bills
receivable were from Tinno. Tinno is a customethef Company’s electronic components and EMS segnent

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2812011, 12.0%, 0.00% and 0.00%; respectivelji®f t
Company’s combined net sales including discontimygetations were made to Huabel, which is an utaela
customer. As of March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,%5r8l and nil, respectively of the Company's taatounts and
bills receivable were from Huabel. Huabel is a oostr of the Company’s electronic components segsnent

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 28212011, 0.0%, 42.4% and 41.6%, respectiveljhof t
Company’s combined net sales including discontimygetations were made to Electrolux, which is arelated
customer. As of March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 niind 35.7%, respectively, of the Company’sltataounts and
bills receivable were from Electrolux. Electroluasvthe major customer of the Company’s home apmmeegment.

The Company was a contract manufacturer of flooe paoducts that are marketed by Electrolux un@ereispective
brand names.
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CONCENTRATION OF RISKS
Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@@mpany to significant concentrations of credik gsimarily consist
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cashahlaifor-sale investments, financial assets inetuth deposits and
other assets and accounts and bills receivable.

Substantially all of the Company’s cash and caslivedents, restricted cash, interest receivabld,amilable-for-sale
investments were financial assets that managensdievbs are of high credit quality.

The Company’s concentration on a limited numberustomers will continue to represent a substaption of our
sales for the foreseeable future. The loss of aajpntustomers or a decrease or delay in ordeemtaripated
spending by such customers could materially reduceevenues and profitability. Our largest custumuld also
engage in business combinations, which could irseré¢izeir size, reduce their demand for our prodagthey
recognize synergies or rationalize assets andaserer decrease the portion of their sales to iagjescustomer.

The Company conducts credit evaluations of itsarmasts but does not require collateral or other sigduom its
customers. The Company makes allowance for douatitbunts primarily based on the age of receivadntesfactors
surrounding the customers’ credit risk.

Current vulnerability due to certain concentrations

The Company’s operations are mainly conducted ingt¢ong and Mainland China with a majority of itdes from
continuing operations to Asia. As a result, the @any’s businesses, financial condition, resultspdrations and
cash flows may be influenced by the political, esmoit and legal environments in Hong Kong and Maidl€hina,
and by the general state of the Hong Kong and MaohiIChina economies.

The Company’s operations may be adversely affdayegignificant political, economic and social urteétties in
Mainland China. Although the PRC government hasilpeesuing economic reform policies for more th@ry@ars,
no assurance can be given that the PRC governnikcbwntinue to pursue such policies or that suoligies may not
be significantly altered, especially in the eveha@hange in leadership, social or political dgimn or unforeseen
circumstances affecting its political, economic andial conditions. There is also no guaranteetttePRC
government’s pursuit of economic reforms will besistent or effective.

A significant portion of the Company’s businessesteansacted in RMB, which is not freely convddiimto foreign
currencies. On January 1, 1994, the PRC governaimiished the dual rate system and introducedghesrate of
exchange as quoted daily by the People’s Bank afaCliHowever, the unification of the exchange rakess not
imply the convertibility of RMB into United Statekllars or other foreign currencies. All foreigncbange
transactions continue to take place either thrahghPeople’s Bank of China or other banks authdrieebuy and sell
foreign currencies at the exchange rates quotetiebiPeople’s Bank of China. Approval of foreignremcy payments
by the People’s Bank of China or other institutigeserally requires submitting a payment applicaf@m together
with suppliers’ invoices, shipping documents, sijoentracts and/or other documents, as appropriate.

A significant portion of the Company’s sales inyioais years from discontinued operations were niadlee U.S. and
the Company is responsible for ensuring that ibslpcts are safe and satisfy all of the requiremeintise consumer
products safety commission (“CPSC”) in the U.S.sTiniay also apply to OEM products manufactured by th
Company to customer specifications. In the evet icall required by the CPSC, the customers eqyire the
Company to provide replacement conforming unitsumtcost, which could have a material adverse eéfedts
business, quality reputation and results of openati
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments that are sulifecredit risks are limited to its cash and ceghivalents,
restricted cash, available-for-sale investmentsoacts and bills receivable, financial assets ithetlin deposits and

other assets, amounts due from a related party.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitiesramgnized initially at cost which is the fair valaf the

consideration given (in the case of assets) oliveddin the case of liabilities). Transaction soate included in the
initial measurement of all financial assets antilites. Subsequent to initial recognition, assaid liabilities are
either valued at cost, amortized cost using thecéffe interest rate method or fair value, depemdim classification.
The following table sets forth the carrying valaesl estimated fair values of the Company’s findrasaets and
liabilities recognized as of March 31, 2013 and200here were no material unrecognized financisétssand

liabilities as of March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Carrying value Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012
uss$ uss$ uss$ uss$
Current financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..............cccceeeemn 32,385,376 39,792,733 32,385,376 39,792,733
Restricted cash............coovvevvviiiivinininn, 14,592,289 4,546,062 14,592,289 4,546,062
Available-for-sale investments...................... 17,153 2,006,066 17,153 2,006,066
Accounts and bills receivable........................ 19,713,608 30,273,062 19,713,608 30,273,062
Financial assets included in deposits and other
ASSELS i 3,846,653 401,815 3,846,653 401,815
Amount due from a related patty.................. 18,841 11,798 18,841 11,798
70,573,920 77,031,536 70,573,920 77,031,536
Non-current financial assets:
Available-for-sale investments...................... 1,045,200 1,033,800 1,045,200 1,033,800
Total financial assets ..........ccccvvvvviiicvimmmn e eeeeeeenn, 71,619,120 78,065,336 71,619,120 78,065,336
Carrying value Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012
uss$ uss$ uss$ uss$
Current financial liabilities:
Short term bank loans ...............ooovvvvv e 4,826,241 4,000,000 4,826,241 4,000,000
Accounts payable...........ccccoeiieii i, 7,134,526 8,163,510 7,134,526 8,163,510
Accrued salaries, allowances and other
employee benefits ......cccccooiviiiiiiis e, 4,367,642 3,102,335 4,367,642 3,102,335
Other accrued liabilities.................vvvmemmmennnn. 9,643,638 6,637,851 9,643,638 6,637,851
Total financial liabilities...........ccccocevioeeiiee . 25,972,047 21,903,696 25,972,047 21,903,696

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and egslvalents, restricted cash, accounts and leitisivable,
financial assets included in deposits and othestasamounts due from a related party, account@ipeyaccrued
salaries, allowances and other employee benefitotrer accrual liabilities approximate to their faalues because
of their short maturities. The available-for-salegéstments are stated at quoted market price.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and testigash are placed primarily with banking insiitms in the PRC
with high credit ratings. The Company performs pai¢ credit standing evaluation of those bankirggiiations to

limit the Company’s exposure to any significantdireisks.
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27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Company’s accounts and bills receivable larggpyesent amounts due from the Company’s principstomers.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoirig bad the Company’s exposure to bad debts isigoifisant.
The Company does not require collateral or otheditienhancement for any of its financial assets.

If the counterparties to the above financial astet$o perform completely under the terms of thei
contract/arrangement, the maximum loss, basedegrtbss fair value of the financial instrumentsg tluthis credit
risk would be US$71,619,120 and US$78,065,336 Maath 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurement and Disclosyrine Company adopted in fiscal 2009, clarifyt thaér
value is an exit price, representing the amourttwiaild be received to sell an asset or paid tasfiex a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantsséch, fair value is a market-based measuremenstioald be
determined based on assumptions that market gemtits would use in pricing an asset or a liabistych as inherent
risk, transfer restrictions and risk of non-perfamoe. As a basis for considering such assumptibestablishes a
three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes theuts used in the valuation methodologies in mégdair value:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedqwi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabditreactive markets.
Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directlyratirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportelittbe or no market activity.

FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclesyrdescribes three main approaches to measutménigir
value of assets and liabilities: (1) market appho#2) income approach and (3) cost approach. Téwkeh approach
uses prices and other relevant information gengfaden market transactions involving identical ongparable assets
or liabilities. The income approach uses valuatemhniques to convert future amounts to a singésemt value
amount. The measurement is based on the valueatediby current market expectations about thosedw@mounts.
The cost approach is based on the amount that veoutdntly be required to replace an asset. Thesédile hierarchy
also requires an entity to maximize the use of nlagge inputs and minimize the use of unobservatgats when
measuring fair value.

The Company’s financial assets carried at fair @an a recurring basis are detailed in the tadeabérl he fair values
of such financial assets are measured in accordsiticd-ASB ASC 820 inputs, including quoted margsgte.

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring laesef March 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

March 31, March 31,
2013 2012

Quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets

us$ us$

Assets
Level 1:
Available-for-sale investments:

Listed equity SECUNLIES .........cvvvvvrvvnnncmmmmnienns 17,153 6,066
Level 2:
Available-for-sale investments:

Unlisted investments............cccoceeeeeieiievieenn... 1,045,200 3,033,800
Total financial assets measured at fair value......... 1,062,353 3,039,866
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STOCK COMPENSATION

@)

(b)

Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Pl&laifal-Tech

In September 1997, the Board of Directors of Glebath adopted Global-Tech’s 1997 Stock Option Péesn
amended, the “1997 Plan”). The 1997 Plan provideshfe grant of (i) options that are intended taldy as
incentive stock options (“Incentive Stock Optionwlithin the meaning of Section 422 of the U.S. in&
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) dagmes and (ii) options not intended to qualify as
Incentive Stock Options to employees and conswdtdriie total number of shares of common stock of
Global-Tech for which options may be granted urilerl997 Plan is 400,000 shares. The 1997 plamezkpin
September 17, 2008 and no further grants can be fnawh this plan after that date.

The 1997 Plan is administered by the Board of Dinesg or a committee of directors appointed byBbard,
who determines the terms of options, includingekercise price, the number of stock subject tofitons and
the terms and conditions of exercise. No optiomtga under the 1997 Plan is transferable by thieoge other
than by will or the laws of descent and distribaotend each vested option is exercisable withirctmractual
period of the option. With respect to any participaho owns (or is deemed to own) stock possesaiorg than
10% of the voting rights of Global-Tech’s outstargicapital stock, the exercise price of any ISOtmos be
less than 110% of the fair market value of thelstotthe date of grant. The term of each optiomtge
pursuant to the 1997 Plan may be established bBakaed of Directors

of Global-Tech, or a committee of the Board of Bicgs of Global-Tech, in its sole discretion; pieal,
however, that the maximum term of each ISO grapteduant to both the 1997 Plan is 10 years. Wipeet to
any ISO granted to a participant who owns (or isnded to own) stock possessing more than 10% abthke
combined voting power of all classes of Global-Teautstanding capital stock, the maximum termiies fears.
Shares of common stock distributed under the 1987 Will be from authorized, but unissued stock@mmon
stock held in the treasury of the Company. Eveyoopgranted shall vest and become exercisabledardance
with the terms of the applicable option agreem@mptions can be exercised for a period not exceetlingears
from the date of grant.

No options issued pursuant to the 1997 Plan wegecesed or expired during fiscal 2011.

During fiscal 2012, an aggregate of 1,250 optioith @xercise prices of US$25.00 and US$30.56 paresh
were forfeited upon resignation of the relevantipgrants and 82,167 options with exercise pricetsvbeen
US$19.00 and US$25.00 per share expired including0® options granted to Directors.

During fiscal 2013, an aggregate of 5,950 optioith @xercise prices of US$15.60 to US$30.56 pereshere
forfeited upon resignation of the relevant partits, employment contract.

2005 Stock Option Plan of Global-Tech

In October 2005, the Board of Directors of Globakf adopted Global-Tech’s 2005 Stock Option Plaa (t
“2005 Plan”). The 2005 Plan provides for the grafnti) “incentive stock options” (“ISOs”) within #ameaning
of Section 422 of the Code; (ii) non-qualified &taptions that do not qualify as ISOs (“NQSOs")dan

(iii) stock appreciation rights. The total numbésbhares of common stock of Global-Tech for whigtians
may be granted under the 2005 Plan is 450,000 share

The 2005 Plan is administered by the Board of Dinescof Global-Tech or a committee appointed byBbard
of Directors of Global-Tech, who determines thentgiof options, including the exercise price, thenhar of
stock subject to the options and the terms anditiond of exercise. No option granted under thenfda
transferable by the optionee other than by willhar laws of descent and distribution and each degp¢ion is
exercisable within the contractual period of théa@p With respect to any participant who ownsigodeemed
to own) stock possessing more than 10% of the gatghts of Global-Tech’s outstanding capital statie
exercise price of any ISO must not be less thafdabthe fair market value of the stock on the dxdtgrant.
The term of each option granted pursuant to the Play be established by the Board of Directors of
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(©

Global-Tech, or a committee of the Board of Direstof Global-Tech, in its sole discretion; providadwever,
that the maximum term of each ISO granted purstaettite 2005 Plan is 10 years. With respect to & |
granted to a participant who owns (or is deememlitn) stock possessing more than 10% of the totabawed
voting power of all classes of Global-Tech'’s outstiag capital stock, the maximum term is five ye&hgery
option granted shall vest and become exercisatdednrdance with the terms of the applicable option
agreement. Options can be exercised for a peribdxoeeding 10 years from the date of grant.

During fiscal 2011, 20,000 options were granted ok were forfeited.
During fiscal 2012, no options were granted andenwere forfeited.
During fiscal 2013, no options were granted andenwere forfeited.
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. 2011 Cmsi Equity Plan

The Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. 2011 GmsiEquity Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) was adopted by
our Board of Directors in October 2010 and apprdwethe Company’s shareholders in November 2018. Th
plan provides for the grant of stock options (ntattgory and incentive), stock appreciation righestricted
stock units, performances shares and common shares.

A committee authorized by the Board of Directohe(tCommittee”) will administer the Omnibus Plamless
otherwise determined by the Board of Directors,Goenpensation Committee will administer the OmniBlen.
Subiject to the terms of the Omnibus Plan, the Cdtemhas the sole discretion to select the empfyyee
consultants, and non-employee directors who wilkiee awards, determine the terms and conditiorssvefds,
and to interpret the provisions of the Omnibus Rlad outstanding awards. The Committee may nobouit
the approval of the Company’s shareholders,

institute an exchange program under which outstendivards are amended to provide for a lower esemice
or cancelled in exchange for awards with a lowereise price.

Awards granted under the Omnibus Plan are generatlyransferable, and all rights with respectrt@ward
granted to a participant generally will be avaitatiuring a participant’s lifetime only to the paipiant. If the
Committee makes an award transferable, such awilirdontain such additional terms and conditionshes
committee deems appropriate.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012 and 204 $hares or options was granted under the 2011ilidis
Equity Plan.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, 73,0aop were granted to officers and directors, 5,00ons to
an employee and 8,000 options to a consultant.

Under the 1997 Plan and the 2005 Plan (the “Plamgiich expire in 10 years, options granted gehevalst 25%
after the first year of service and ratably eacimth@ver a further 36-month period.

The expected life of the options is based on te®hital data and is not necessarily indicativéhefexercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects #ssumption that the historical volatility is icaive of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual ouésorfihe risk-free rate for periods within the expddife of the
options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curitle maturity equal to the expected life of the ops in effect at the
time of grant.
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The total compensation expense recognized in thASBe item in the consolidated statement of opierss and
comprehensive income for the fiscal years endeccMat, 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to US$258,128,

US$34,121 and US$470,109, respectively.

Changes in outstanding options under both the P3&7, the 2005 Plan and the Omnibus Plan durindigbal years

ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2013
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
uss US$
(per share) (per share) (years) US$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year.....cccccevvvvveeee... 339,701 8.99 — 30.56 17.66 3.96 —
LT o] 1= o RSP 86,000 4.75 4.75
[ 0T (=T PP — — —
EXEICISEA.. ..o erreen s e e e e e e e — — —
Forfeited.........ooovviiiiee e, (5,950 15.60 - 30.56 21.26
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year..........commmmeeeceiiiiiennn.. 419,751 4.75 - 30.56 14.96 4.28 —
Vested and expected to be vested at March 31, 2013.. 419,751 4.75 - 30.56 14.96 4.28 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year..........commmeeeeiiiiiinnnn. 369,752 4.75 - 30.56 13.41 4.60

Changes in outstanding options under both the 387 and the 2005 Plan during the fiscal years é&iach 31,

2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows: (continued)

2012
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
Us$ Us$
(per share) (per share) (years) US$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year.............. 423,118 8.99-30.56 18.00 4.01 —
Granted ........coovvvviviiiiiiiiii i e e eneans — — —
{01 (=T o [P (82,167 19.00-25.00 19.22
o (=] (o] Y= To [ — — —
Forfeited ... (1,250  25.00-30.56 29.45
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year........................ 339,701 8.99-30.56 17.66 3.96 —
Vested and expected to be vested at March 31,.2012339,701 8.99-30.56 17.66 3.96 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year......................... 8.99-30.56 16.06 417

287,452
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2011
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
Us$
Us$ (per
(per share) share) (years) US$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year.......cccc......oveeeeeee.n. 403,118 13.20-30.56 18.44 4.78 —
LCTr= 101 =T O PP TR PP UPPPPPPP 20,000 8.99 8.99
{01 (=T PR N — — —
EXEICISEA...ciiiiiiiiiie ettt — — —
FOrfeIted ...t —
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year..........ceeeeeieiiiccinnnne. 423,118 8.99-30.56 18.00 4.01 —
Vested and expected to be vested at March 31, 2011....... 423,118 8.99-30.56 18.00 4.01 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year..........commmeeeeieeieeneeennnnn.. 365,369 8.99-30.56 16.90 3.94
In January 1999, the Board of Directors of Globetfi adopted an employee stock purchase plan. ahengs
approved by the stockholders at the annual meefistpckholders in March 1999. The total numbecahmon stock
which may be granted under the plan is 450,000esh&tock grants may be awarded under the pldreterhployees,
including officers and directors, and non-emplogl@ectors and consultants in consideration forrteervices to the
Group.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, Gléketh granted an aggregate of 3,750 shares of constogk of
Global-Tech to an employee with an effective gidate of November 6, 2006. 750 shares of such constomk
vested and were issued on the first anniversatliyetlate of the stock grant and 750 shares of smtimon stock
vested and were issued on the second, third, foamith fifth anniversaries of the date of the stgint, respectively.
1,500 shares were issued during fiscal year 2013.
Changes in stock grants during the fiscal yeare@mdarch 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
grant-date grant-date grant-date
Stock fair value Stock fair value Stock fair value
uss$ uss$ us$
Non-vested, at beginning of fiscal year......cccevevvveeeeeennneee. 750 10,380 750 10,380 1,500 20,760
LCT7= 101 (=T o TP R PP TPPPPPPPI — — — — — —
RV =251 (=T TP RUPRPRRR (750 10,380 — — (750 10,380
Non-vested, at end of fiscal year...........comvvevvvviiiiiiiiiinn. — — 750 10,380 750 10,380

The total fair value of the 750 shares of commaorlstvested during the fiscal years ended Marct2813 and 2011
was US$6,503 and US$5,085, respectively.

The expense for employee stock purchase plan rexyin the SG&A line item in the consolidated staent of

operations and comprehensive income for the figeats ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 amotmted
US$9,108, nil and US$1,969 respectively.
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Further details relating to the options grantedaurtde 1997 Plan, the 2005 Plan and the OmnibustRéd are

outstanding as of March 31, 2013 are as follows:

Options outstanding as of March 31, 2013

Options exercisable
as of March 31, 2013

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of average average average
exercise price remaining exercise price exercise price
Number of per contractual per Number of per
options option life option options option
uss$ uss$ Uss$
(per share) (years) (per share) (per share)
86,000 4.75 9.31 4.75 82,250 4.75
20,000 8.99 6.70 8.99 15,000 8.99
248,251 13.20 45.6( 3.29 14.87 248,251 14.87
65,500 30.40 — 30.56 0.70 30.55 24,251 30.54
419,751 369,752

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, there was an unrézed share-based compensation cost of nil and 19691
relating to stock granted to an employee unded &89 Employee Stock Purchase Plan respectivelyunhecognized
compensation cost for stocks granted is expectée r@cognized over a weighted-average vestinggeifitwo years
and five years. To the extent that the actual fanfe rate is different from the original estimatetual share-based

compensation relating to these awards may be diffédrom the expectations.

The fair value of the options granted was estimatethe date of grant using the following assummsio

2011

2013 2012
Risk-free Interest Rate..................... 0.97% -1.50% —
Expected Dividend Yield................. 0% —
Expected Option Life...................... 7-10 years —

Expected Stock Price Volatility........ 53.28% - 58.71% —
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29. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECH
Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, theg2my's PRC subsidiaries (the “PRC Subsidiariess)rastricted
in their ability to transfer certain of their netsats to Global-Tech in the form of dividend paytaglvans, or
advances. The amounts restricted include net askte PRC Subsidiaries, as determined pursudPRt0 generally
accepted accounting principles, totaling RMB364,602 (approximately US$58,607,593) as of March28i,3.
The following is the condensed financial informatiaf Global-Tech on a stand-alone basis:
Balance sheets
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
uss$ us$
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and Cash @QUIVAIENES .......uuiii i eeeeeeee e e eeaeaeeaene 19,405,865 21,984,305

Available-for-sale INVESIMENES ........ooii et — 2,000,000

L (=T 0 T= o =3t 0 1= £ SRS 46,903 43,210

Deposits and Other @SSELS.....coiiiii it e e e 40,087 24,723
TOLAl CUITENT @S SIS, .. . ittt e e e ettt e e e e ettt eeeeee bt e e eeaeeettt e eeeeeaaaaeeesbannaaeeestnnmmas 19,492,855 24,052,238
INTEreStS IN SUDSIAIAIES ... .coovti e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e ee bt eeeesnnanns 55,812,262 55,206,077
Available-for-sale INVESIMENES. ......... . i e 1,045,200 1,033,800
0] = L= T Y= £ T OO PPPTPR 76,350,317 80,292,115
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Other accrued labilItIES. ... ......ciiiiii e 92,114 201,483
TOLAl IADIIIEIES ...t et s e et e e e et e e e e s sanbe e e e e smmnnaens 92,114 201,483
Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, par value US$0.04 per share; 12,80G0ares authorized; 3,230,814 and

3,229,314 shares issued as of March 31, 2013 ab@l.20...........ccueveiriiiimmmeeee e 129,233 129,173

Preferred stock, par value US$0.04 per share; BBGsBares authorized; no shares issued — —

Additional paid-in capital 85,053,402 84,786,226

Statutory reserves ........ccccevvevvvvvnnnnnn 1,238,361 —

AccUMUIAtEd EFICIL. .. ..ot e e (15,932,94) (9,690,526)

Accumulated other comprenenSIVe INCOME..... .o rrerrrniiinieeieeeeeeeee s eeeeeeeieeereeae e 10,709,740 9,697,445

Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 189,587 shares auath 31, 2013 and 2012...........cccc....... (4,663,32) (4,663,321)

Total Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. shal@@is’ equity .........cccccvveveeeeeriivicemnnns 76,534,474 80,258,997

NON-CONEIOIING INTEIESES .....cciiiiiiiiie s irreene et (276,27) (168,365)
B I0] 7= I =To U1 Y2 PRSP 76,258,203 80,090,632
Total liabilities and sharehOlders’ EQUILY ... eiieiieeiiieiii e e e e e e e e e eeeeaeeraane 76,350,317 80,292,115

51



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECHcontinued)

Statements of operations and comprehensive income

NEE SAIES ..viiiei i ab—s

(070153 ] o To To o E-38=To ] o SRR

Gross profit.

Selling, general and administrative eXpenses..........coeeveveeevvmmnnnn.

OPErAtING lOSS...civiviiiiiiiiiiis it e e e e e e e e e e e eaes
INtErest INCOME, NEL ......iiiiiiiiii e e
Equity in profits (losses) of subsidiaries. ...cceeecooviviciiiiieereiineeeens,
Other inCome (EXPENSE), NEL........uiiiiiiiececeeereeeee e e e e s e ee e e e

Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders lob@-Tech

Advanced INNOVAtioNS INC. .....coovuiiiiiiiiiiceiee e,

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation adjustments.......ccccccceeeeeiiiieeeiieeneeenn,

Release of unrealized loss on available-for-salegtments, net of
income tax of nil, upon disposal...........cceeeevviiiiciiiiieieeeeee e,

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investmenés,of income

tax of nil

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investmemgs,of income

tax of nil..

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributablehtrsholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations INC........cccccceeeeviiiiiieeeeennn.
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Fiscal years ended March 31,

2013 2012 2011
Uss$ USs$ USs$
(1,071,502)  (1,158,531)  (1,252,554)
(1,071,502)  (1,158,531)  (1,252,554)
344,582 35,349 29,831
(484,185) 1,923,914  (2,155,198)
(752,196) 609,945 (635,050)
(1,963,301) 1,410,677  (4,012,971)
989,800 2,278,213 2,304,178
— — 1,877
22,495 24,600 11,092
— (643) —
(951,006) 3,712,847  (1,695,824)




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECH (cotinued)

Statements of cash flows

Fiscal years ended March 31,

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss) attributable to shareholderslob@l-Tech Advanced Innovations

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) attable to shareholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. to net castvided by operating
activities:

Stock COMPENSALION EXPENSE ... ..ciiiii e eeeeeree it
Shares issued t0 an EMPIOYEE ...........uuiieeeeeeeeeeieie e e e ee e e e e
Equity in losses (profits) of subsidiaries...ccccee..oooovviiiiiiieeeiiiciie e,
Interest received from available-for-sale investtaen...............ccvvviimnenes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Prepaid @XPENSES ....cociiiieiiiee ettt eemeemms s s s r s e e e e e e e e e et e e ————————
Deposits and other aSSetS........oooiiv i e e
Other accrued liabilitieS. ..........uoiii i ieceem e e

Net cash used in operating activities.......ccoeeeee oo

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of available-for-sale investments..............ooooiiiiii e,
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale iINM@StS ...............ccoecvvvvivvicccceee e,
Repayment of amounts due from (advances to) s@gdj net...............ccceevnvnneeee,
Capital injection INtO SUDSIAIANES ... ... . e vevriasieeseeeeeeeeeeeseeeeees s mneeneeseeeeennns

Net cash provided by investing activities.............ccoevvviviveiiiiiiiicicccr e

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash dividend PaId.........cceeeieiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Net cash used in finanCing acCtiVIitieS .......ceccccceeeeee e

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent.....................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fisl .ye...............ooo oo e it vvvviiiinnnnn,

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiScal Year w......ccvvvvriiieeeieiiiiiiiiiiinn,

2013 2012 2011
US$ Uss Uss$
(1,963,301) 1,410,677 (4,012,971)
258,128 34,121 470,139
9,108 — 1,969
484,185 (1,923,913 2,155,198
(3,693) (2,58 3,465
(15,364) 4,969 (3,769)
(109,369) (26,324 (7,591)
(1,340,306) (503,086  (1,393,560)
— (8,999,98]  (3,000,000)
2,000,000 9,000,000 15,986,532
910,372 13,091,819 (639,128)
(1,107,753) (1,732,162 (1,858,931)
1,802,619 11,359,670 10,488,473
(3,040,753) — _
(3,040,753) — —
(2,578,440) 10,856,604 9,094,913
21,984,305 11,127,701 2,032,788
19,405,865 21,984,305 11,127,701

(a) Basis of preparation

For the purposes of the preparation of the condkfisancial information of Global-Tech, the Compaegords its
interests in direct and indirect subsidiaries urtlerequity method of accounting as prescribeddSE ASC 323
“Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures”. ISinterests, together with the advances to subgdisare
presented as “Interests in subsidiaries” on thartza sheets and share of the subsidiaries’ incowchéoases is
presented as “Equity in profits (losses) of sulagids” on the statements of operations and compsieincome.

(b) Commitments

Global-Tech has provided a letter of support tdaterof its subsidiaries indicating its commitmémiprovide

continuing financial support to those subsidiaries.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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John C.K. Sham

President, Chief Executive Officer, Acting Chief
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Brian Yuen
Chief Executive Officer, Global-Tech USA, Inc.

Patrick Po-On Hui
Director

Ken Ying-Keung Wong
Director

Barry J. Buttifant
Director
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John C.K. Sham

President, Chief Executive Officer, Acting Chief

Financial Officer and Chairman

Brian Yuen
Chief Executive Officer, Global-Tech USA, Inc.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038
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Hong Kong
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AVAILABILITY OF ADDITIONAL |INFORMATION

This publication is a summary annual report. A copy
Global-Tech's annual report on Form 20-F and
quarterly reports will be furnished without chargson
request to any shareholder. The annual report on
Form 20-F is also available on Global-Tech’s websit
at http://www.global-webpage.com Please send
requests to:

Investor Relations Department
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.
12/F., Kin Teck Industrial Building

26 Wong Chuk Hang Road

Aberdeen, Hong Kong

For further information on Global-Tech, its prodct
and its markets, please call (852) 2814-0601 or fax
(852) 2873-0591.



